
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Tuesday 24 August 2021 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Thursday 2 September 2021, 4.00 pm 
 

Wigton Market Hall, CA7 9AA 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Co-Chair)  
 

Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes (Co-
Chair) 

Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Patrick Gorrill 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Iain Greaney 
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Ron Munby MBE Councillor Paul Scott 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2021 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 



 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. Capital Outturn 2020/2021  (Pages 9 - 20) 
 

7. Revenue Outturn 2020/2021  (Pages 21 - 58) 
 

8. Outside bodies reports - to receive any final responses from Councillors   
 

9. Referral from Council, 27 July 2021 - to determine how the Committee will 
respond  (Pages 59 - 64) 

 

10. The Final Report of the Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group  
(Pages 65 - 76) 

 

 For approval and next steps to be agreed 
  

11. Update on plans for Local Government Reorganisation   
 

 Verbal Update 
  

12. Forward Plan   
 

 To Follow  
(Forward Plan Publication Date – 31 August 2021) 

  

13. Work Programme and Task and Finish Groups 2021/22  (Pages 77 - 94) 
 

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 8 October 2021, 1.30 pm 

To be confirmed 
 
 



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Wigton Market Hall on 
Friday 16 July 2021 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes (Co-

Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Allan Daniels 
Councillor Iain Greaney Councillor Hilary Harrington 
Councillor Sally Lansbury Councillor Paul Scott 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours, 
Councillor Patrick Gorrill, Councillor Malcolm Grainger and Councillor Daniel Horsley 
 
Staff Present 
 
A FitzGerald, I Hinde, L Jardine and P Wood 
 
Also Present 
 
A J Markley (Executive Member: Leisure and Tourism), A Pitcher (Executive Member: 
Customer Experience and Innovation, Armed Forces Champion) and A Tyson 
 
96. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2021 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

97. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

98. Questions  
 
None received 
 

99. Public Participation  
 
None received 
 

100. Further update on the outside body reports from the member 
representatives  
 
The Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) provided an update to members 
of the reports received from member of the LEP Scrutiny Group. 
 
Councillor Pitcher (Executive Member: Customer Experience and Innovation) 
was in attendance to provide updates to members on the Allerdale Disability 
Association and Cumbria Community Foundation. Councillor Pitcher also 
advised members that he was recently appointed Armed Forces Champion and 
has begun working with various bodies in the Allerdale Area. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



The Chair agreed that the members who have yet to submit reports can do so 
by the next meeting of the Committee. 
 

 Councillors Scott and Harrington joined the meeting   
  
101. The Local Focus Hub  

 
Councillor Pitcher provided an overview of the Allerdale Local Focus Hub, 
explaining the Hub includes Fire and Rescue, Cumbria Constabulary, 
Charitable Associations, Housing Associations, Probation Services and various 
groups working within the Community. Members and the public can report 
issues via Police 101 services, via MyAllerdale App or via a phone call to 
Allerdale Customer Services and if necessary they are taken to the Hub. 
 
Due to the length of time to achieve outcomes and the issue of confidentiality, it 
is not always possible to provide updates to members on actions taken within 
the Hub. Members however can receive regular updates from the Police via its 
newsletter. Member briefing sessions were held but due to poor attendance, 
they were withdrawn. 
 
Members then asked questions in relation to the Hub Management, and 
specifically the role of the Hub Manager, in response Councillor Pitcher will 
provide a written response to members. 
 
Debate then ensued and members expressed frustration at the fact they are not 
informed of outcomes and are not given sufficient feedback, concerns were also 
raised over the Hub reporting methods. 
 
Councillor Pitcher reiterated that confidentiality is one of the main reasons why 
feedback is not readily available and that some information is restricted, even to 
elected members. 
 
 

 Councillor Lansbury joined the meeting   
  
102. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report  

 
The Chair introduced the draft report, advising that the foreword will be to 
follow.  
 
Members noted the contents of the Report. 
 

103. Third report of the Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group  
 
The Chair introduced the item, advising that the Task and Finish Group has 
worked on three phases of the response to the pandemic. This third phase 
focused on transformation  and the delivery of services. 
 
The Chair then went through the recommendations and discussion ensued in 
relation to access to services, especially residents who do not have online 
access. In relation to officers working away from Allerdale House, members 
acknowledged that this could make officers more accessible to communities. 

Page 4



 
Members agreed to the recommendations. 
 
The Programme Director (Transformation and Operating Model) then provided 
an overview of the new approach to customer services, including the fulfilment 
centre, document management and delivery models. The officer then provided 
examples to members on innovations made to parking and pest control 
services. 
 
Members asked questions of the officer in relation to the new and existing 
document management practices.  
 
A summary report of the full work of the Pandemic Task and Finish Group, 
which includes parts one and two will be considered at the next meeting. 
 

104. Centre for Governance and Scrutiny guidance on the relationship between 
Scrutiny and Audit  
 
The Chair introduced the report and welcomed the Chair of the Audit 
Committee, Councillor Tyson to the meeting. 
 
Councillor Tyson expressed his views on the report and on the key differences 
between Audit and Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
Members debated the report, with members expressing that Audit and Overview 
and Scrutiny should remain separate. 
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer confirmed that joint training will be arranged for 
the members of both committees. 
 
The Chair advised members that the Co-Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny will 
work with the Chair and Vice Chair of Audit to review the recommendations. 
 

105. Forward Plan  
 
Members noted the contents of the Forward Plan. 
 

106. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring  
 
The draft work programme was circulated to members for this item.  
 
Members agreed the contents of the Work Programme for 2021/22. 
 

107. Task and Finish Groups  
 
The draft outline and scope for the following task and finish groups were 
circulated to members. 
 

 Community Leadership 

 Culture, Arts and Leisure Provision 

 Young People and Corporate Parenting 
 

Page 5



Debate ensued in relation to Local Government Reorganisation, members 
acknowledging that it will be difficult to make some recommendations and 
judgements. On this the Chair advised that any recommendations from the Task 
and Finish Groups will be made to whichever body succeeds Allerdale Borough 
Council. 
 
Members agreed that the Sports, Arts and Culture Provision Task and Finish 
Group is of greater importance and suggested that this Task and Finish Group 
starts work first, followed by Community Leadership and then Young People 
and Corporate Parenting. 
 

 Councillor Greaney left the meeting   
  
 The Chair Moved:  

 
“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act”. 

  
108. Keswick Spa Closure  

 
Members were provided with information relating to the decision to close 
Keswick Spa. 
 
Councillor Markley (Executive Member: Leisure and Tourism) attended the 
meeting to answer questions from members. 
 

 Councillor Daniels left the meeting   
  
109. Strategic Delivery Partner  

 
Members were provided with information relating to the appointment of a 
strategic delivery partner. 
 
The Programme Director (Transformation and Operating Model) provided a 
brief to members and the decision to be made at Executive on 21 July 2021.  
 
It is recommended that the Executive appoint Mott MacDonald as strategic 
delivery partner via the Crown Commercial Services Framework RM3745 for a 
period of nine months. This is to provide additional capacity and support for the 
delivery of Regeneration and Investment Programme including projects 
identified in the Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy, the development of 
business cases for the projects within the Workington Town Deal, and 
continued development and delivery of the regeneration projects in Maryport 
through the Future High Street Fund programme. 
 
The Committee made a recommendation to the Executive that the contractual 
arrangements provide for Mott MacDonald to attend and give evidence at 
Overview and Scrutiny and at Audit Committee is required. 
 

Page 6



Members also asked questions of the officers and noted the contents of the 
report and information provided.  
 

The meeting closed at 4.00 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Allerdale Borough Council 

Executive - 21 July 2021 

Capital Outturn 2020-21 

 

Portfolio holder Councillor Colin Sharpe 

 PH Finance and Legal  

Report from Catherine Nicholson, Chief Officer Assets & S151 

  telephone no: 01900-702503  
 email: catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk  

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 

 

1.0  Reason for the decision 

1.1 To inform Members of the capital outturn position for 2020-21 and to seek 
Members’ approval of the associated budget carry forward requests.  

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 Members are asked to: 

• note the draft capital outturn position for the year ending 31 March 2021  

• approve the carry forward of £8,530,134 to 2021-22 to enable previously 
approved capital schemes to be completed. 

3.0  Summary Capital Outturn Position 

3.1 The 2020-21 element of the Council’s three-year capital budget is 
£11,792,253. Actual capital expenditure in the year to March 2021 was 
£3,073,642 leaving an outturn variance (underspend) of £8,718,611. Re-
profiling adjustments of expenditure to subsequent financial years (budget 
carry-forwards) total £8,530,134, leaving a net underspend of £188,477. 

3.2 This net underspend will result a reduction of: 

 £2,551,203 in the application grant income to finance capital 
expenditure 

 £329,518 in the use of capital receipts  

 £21,267 in the contribution from general fund balances  

 £5,816,623 the amount of unfinanced capital expenditure funded from 

borrowing.  

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



3.3  A summary of the 2020-21 capital outturn and associated financing is set out 
in tables1 and 2 below. 
 

Table 1: Capital Outturn Expenditure by Portfolio 2020-21  

Portfolio 
Current 
Budget Outturn 

Outturn 
Variance 

Budget 
C/F Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Econ. Growth, Comm. Dev. & Placemaking 8,071 742 (7,329) 7,238 (91) 

Policy, Governance & People Resources 1,589 960 (629) 629 0 

Environmental Services  990 357 (633) 535 (98) 

Leisure & Tourism 1,058 1,014 (44) 44 0 

Customer Experience & Innovation 85 0 (85) 85 0 

Total Capital Expenditure 11,793 3,073 (8,720) 8,531 (189) 

 Table 2: Capital Outturn Financing  

Financing Source 
Current 
Budget Outturn 

Outturn 
Variance 

Budget 
C/F Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Capital Grants & Contributions: 

Housing  1,378 823 (555) 555 0 

Non-Housing  3,623 1,626 (1,997) 1,944 (53) 

 5,001 2,449 (2,552) 2,499 (53) 

Allerdale B.C. Resources: 

Capital Receipts 647 318 (329) 301 (28) 

General Fund Balances 94 72 (22) 5 (17) 

Borrowing 6,051 234 (5,817) 5,726 (91) 

Total financing 

 

11,793 3,073 (8,720) 8,531 (189) 

 

4.0  Budget Carry Forward Requests 

4.1 Unused budgets totalling £8,530,134 have been requested to be carried 
forward to 2021-22. These are the result of changes to the timing of 
expenditure across financial years compared to the expenditure profile 
incorporated into the revised 2020-21 capital budget. Budget carry forwards 
do not impact on the overall budget allocated to the capital programme. 
Details of individual budget carry forward requests are set out in Appendix C. 
Appendix D sets out the impact of the budget carry forward requests on the 
Council’s three-year capital programme 2021-22 to 2023-24. 

5.0    Explanations of Key Variances (after budget carry forward 
requests) 

5.1 Details of key variances, after taking account of budget carry forwards, are set 
out in Appendix E. 

 

Page 10



6.0 Capital Resources 

6.1 Appendix F provides a summary of the movements in capital resources during   
2020-21. Further details are set out in the following paragraphs.   

Capital Receipts 

6.2 The balance of capital receipts at the start of the financial year was 
£1,134,053. During the year £46,000 was received from the disposal of 
investment properties. Capital receipts of £318,000 were applied in 2020-21 
leaving a balance available for allocation of £862,053.  

6.3 After deducting ring-fenced receipts of £45,000, £611,974 of the remaining 
balance of has been committed to fund capital expenditure over the period 
2021-22 to 2022-24. This leaves £205,079 available for allocation. This will be 
taken into account in future budget setting processes and will be allocated in 
line with the approved capital strategy.  

Capital Grants 

6.4 The balance of capital grants at the start of the financial year was £1,120,261 
including £871,729 received in advance at 31 March 2020. During the year 
grants of £3,896,971 were received. A total of £2,449,188 was applied in 
2020-21 leaving a balance of £2,568,044 (comprising capital grants received 
in advance of £1,704,634 and capital grants unapplied of £863,410). 
Excluding amounts ring-fenced, this balance is fully committed to finance 
capital expenditure in 2021-22. 

7.0  Delivery arrangements 

7.1 Not applicable to this decision/report.  

8.0 Implications and Impact 

 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

8.1 None arising directly from this decision/report. 

 Finance/Resource implications 

8.2 Financial issues and implications are included within the main body of this 
report. 

 Legal and governance implications  

8.3 There are no legal or governance issues arising from this decision/report. 

 Risk analysis 

8.4 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Increasing satisfaction and service 

8.5 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

Page 11



 Equality impacts 

8.6 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Health and Safety impacts 

8.7 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

8.8 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

8.9 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Other significant implications 

8.10  There are no other significant implications arising from report. 

 

Appendices attached to this report 

Appendix  Title of appendix 

A Capital Outturn 2020-21: Capital expenditure compared to budget  

B Capital Outturn 2020-21: Portfolio Summary and Financing 

C Summary of requested budget carry-forwards  

D Three-year capital budget 2021-22 to 2023-24 

E Capital Outturn 2020-21: Residual Variance Summary 

F Capital Resources  

Background documents available 

Name of background document Where it is available 

None N/A 

Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 

Barry Lennox 
Financial Services Manager 
telephone no: 01900-702586 
email: mailto:barry.lennox@allerdale.gov.uk  
 

Page 12

mailto:barry.lennox@allerdale.gov.uk


Appendix A

Revised Virements / Current Actual Actual - capital Outturn

Budget Adjustments Budget (Outturn) (Outturn)  Variance  Variance

Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking

Strategic Acquisitions 379,329 0 379,329 0 0 0 (379,329) 379,329 0

Lillyhall -Infrastructure 2,200,000 0 2,200,000 437,494 0 437,494 (1,762,506) 1,762,506 0

Reedlands Road Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Riverbank Works - Millfield Workington 26,495 0 26,495 (30) 0 (30) (26,525) 26,525 0

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) 160,000 0 160,000 21,333 0 21,333 (138,667) 106,167 (32,500)

Regeneration and investment 4,400,000 0 4,400,000 0 0 0 (4,400,000) 4,400,000 0

Markets - plant and equipment 50,000 0 50,000 22,639 (22,639) 0 (50,000) 0 (50,000)

Solar Panels 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Kirkgate Centre Contribution 100,000 0 100,000 0 0 0 (100,000) 100,000 0

Workington Hall Repair Scheme 211,522 0 211,522 203,681 0 203,681 (7,841) 0 (7,841)

Public Toilets Review Works 41,236 0 41,236 29,013 (165) 28,848 (12,388) 12,388 0

Maryport Future High Streets initiative 0 0 0 30,641 0 30,641 30,641 (30,641) 0

Workington - Towns funding scheme 502,136 502,136 20,295 0 20,295 (481,841) 481,841 0

TOTAL - Econ. Growth, Community Develop. & Placemaking 8,070,718 0 8,070,718 765,066 (22,804) 742,262 (7,328,456) 7,238,115 (90,341)

Finance and Legal

Leased Assets - property, vehicles & equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Policy, Governance and People Resources

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 1,214,000 163,505 1,377,505 822,893 0 822,893 (554,612) 554,612 0

Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) 71,238 0 71,238 57,326 0 57,326 (13,912) 13,912 0

Conversion of Otley Road 130,000 0 130,000 80,217 0 80,217 (49,783) 49,783 0

Ladore Toilets - conversion 10,000 0 10,000 1,104 (1,104) 0 (10,000) 10,000 0

TOTAL - Policy, Governance and People Resources 1,425,238 163,505 1,588,743 961,540 (1,104) 960,436 (628,307) 628,307 0

Environmental Services 

Reinstatement of Public Right of Way - Maryport 100,000 0 100,000 67,374 67,374 (32,626) 0 (32,626)

Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure programmes 179,907 0 179,907 19,427 (19,427) 0 (179,907) 160,480 (19,427)

Dearham Cemetery 10,000 0 10,000 4,975 0 4,975 (5,025) 0 (5,025)

LATCo - vehicles and Equipment 40,630 0 40,630 15,999 0 15,999 (24,631) 0 (24,631)
Car Park - signage and equipment 16,427 0 16,427 6,498 (6,498) 0 (16,427) 0 (16,427)

Highfield Community Centre 6,750 0 6,750 6,750 0 6,750 0 0 0

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 636,041 636,041 261,690 0 261,690 (374,351) 374,351 0

TOTAL - Environmental Services 989,755 0 989,755 382,713 (25,925) 356,788 (632,967) 534,831 (98,136)

Leisure and Tourism

Solway Coast Pathway 846,729 0 846,729 831,371 0 831,371 (15,358) 15,358 0

Helena Thompson Museum Development 211,308 0 211,308 182,785 0 182,785 (28,523) 28,523 0

TOTAL -Leisure and Tourism 1,058,037 0 1,058,037 1,014,156 0 1,014,156 (43,881) 43,881 0

Customer Experience and Innovation

ICT - Server Infrastructure 85,000 0 85,000 0 0 0 (85,000) 85,000 0

TOTAL - Customer Experience and Innovation 85,000 0 85,000 0 0 0 (85,000) 85,000 0

Total Expenditure 11,628,748 163,505 11,792,253 3,123,475 (49,833) 3,073,642 (8,718,611) 8,530,134 (188,477)

1 
Amounts charged to revenue comprise expenditure falling outwith the statutory definition of capital expenditure and expenditure on low value items of plant and equipment.

Capital Budget Monitoring 2020/21 - Draft Outturn at 31 March 2021

 Budget C/F

Written off to 

Revenue
1

P
age 13



Appendix  B

Capital Budget Monitoring 2020/21 - Draft Outturn at 31 March 2021

Revised Virements / Current Actual - capital Outturn

Budget Adjustments Budget (Outturn)  Variance Budget C/F  Variance

Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 8,070,718 0 8,070,718 742,262 (7,328,456) 7,238,115 (90,341)

Finance and Legal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Policy, Governance and People Resources 1,425,238 163,505 1,588,743 960,436 (628,307) 628,307 0

Environmental Services 989,755 0 989,755 356,788 (632,967) 534,831 (98,136)

Leisure and Tourism 1,058,037 0 1,058,037 1,014,156 (43,881) 43,881 0

Customer Experience and Innovation 85,000 0 85,000 0 (85,000) 85,000 0

Total Expenditure 11,628,748 163,505 11,792,253 3,073,642 (8,718,611) 8,530,134 (188,477)

DFG Housing Grant 1,214,000 163,505 1,377,505 822,893 (554,612) 554,612 0

SCP Housing Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ERDF grant - Reedlands Road Development 0 0 0 0 0 0

LEP Growth Deal funding - Lillyhall Development 1,600,000 0 1,600,000 328,121 (1,271,879) 1,271,879 0

Contribution - Lillyhall 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Coastal Communities Fund grant - Solway Coast Pathway 796,729 0 796,729 663,796 (132,933) 132,933 0

Other grants - Solway Coast Pathway (RDPE grant) 50,000 0 50,000 167,575 117,575 (117,575) 0

Other grants and contributions - Workington  Hall 150,000 0 150,000 143,511 (6,489) 0 (6,489)

Other Contributions 60,000 0 60,000 0 (60,000) 60,000 0

HLF grant 114,907 0 114,907 0 (114,907) 101,198 (13,709)

Accelerated Towns Fund 750,000 0 750,000 281,985 (468,015) 468,015 0

HAZ funding - Grant 68,750 0 68,750 10,666 (58,084) 58,084 0

HAZ funding -private sector contribution 32,500 0 32,500 0 (32,500) 0 (32,500)

Future High Streets Grant 0 0 0 30,641 30,641 (30,641) 0

Total Financed from Grants and Contributions 4,836,886 163,505 5,000,391 2,449,188 (2,551,203) 2,498,505 (52,698)

Capital Receipts 647,518 0 647,518 318,000 (329,518) 301,389 (28,129)

Revenue Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue 0 0 0

General Fund Balances 93,677 0 93,677 72,410 (21,267) 4,840 (16,427)

Total financed from Capital receipts and General Fund 741,195 0 741,195 390,410 (350,785) 306,229 (44,556)

Total Expenditure financed in year 5,578,081 163,505 5,741,586 2,839,598 (2,901,988) 2,804,734 (97,254)

Unfinanced expenditure: 

Prudential Borrowing 6,050,667 0 6,050,667 234,044 (5,816,623) 5,725,400 (91,223)

Credit Arrangements - capital leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Unfinanced 6,050,667 0 6,050,667 234,044 (5,816,623) 5,725,400 (91,223)

TOTAL - Capital Funding 11,628,748 163,505 11,792,253 3,073,642 (8,718,611) 8,530,134 (188,477)

Financing

P
age 14



Appendix C

Grants 

Capital 

receipts GF Borrowing Explanation for reported variance 

Description £ £ £ £ £

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking

Strategic Acquisitions 379,329 0 80,000 0 299,329 The capital budget of £379,329 (funded from capital receipts and borrowing) was established to meet the costs of acquiring and redeveloping 

commercial properties to support business start-ups and the small business sector. This includes £200,000 carried forward from 2019-20. No 

expenditure was incurred against this budget in the 2020-21. However, the Council continues to explore opportunities to acquire land and 

property that will contribute to the delivery of key strategic objectives and in particular the regeneration schemes in Workington and 

Maryport.  The budget carry forward request will ensure the budget remains available to take advantage of property acquisition and 

development opportunities that support the achievement of Council Priorities. 

Lillyhall - Infrastructure 1,762,506 1,271,879 0 0 490,627 The 2020-21 capital budget of £2.2m covers planning approval for a hybrid application to include detailed approval for enabling infrastructure 

and speculative industrial and commercial development, along with the delivery of enabling infrastructure works on Council owned land at 

Lillyhall. The scheme is financed from Growth Deal grant funding from Cumbria LEP (£1.6m) and borrowing (£600k). Following confirmation 

of planning consent, on-site work commenced in March 2021. Total expenditure incurred in 2020-21 was £437,494.  The unused budget of 

£1,762,506 will be carried forward to 2021-22 to allow the scheme to continue.

Riverbank Works - Millfield Workington 26,525 0 0 0 26,525 The scheme involves installation of rock armour to provide protection against further erosion and safeguard the adjacent access road.  Work 

on this scheme was delayed during the year pending grant of a license to work in the river. The remaining budget will be carried forward to 

2021-22 to allow the scheme to continue.

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) 106,167 58,084 48,083 0 0 The Maryport HAZ scheme includes the refurbishment of four key high street buildings (including Maryport Town Hall and the Maritime 

Museum), an extensive shopfront grant scheme and public realm works. The total budget for the scheme is £905k and is funded from the 

HAZ grant of £470k, private sector contributions of £155k, capital receipts of £150k and borrowing of £130k. Total scheme expenditure of 

£905k is profiled to be spent across financial years 2020-21: £160k; 2021-22: £345k and 2022-24: £400k.

Expenditure of £21,333 was incurred 2020-21, resulting in an underspend of £138,667. Underpinning the underspend were delays to work on 

Maryport Town Hall, 1 Senhouse Street (Maritime Museum) and 68 Crosby Street as a result of restrictions arising from the Covid-19 

pandemic. Of the unspent budget of £138,667, £106,167 has been carried forward to 2021-22 to allow the project to continue. Excluded from 

the requested budget carry forward is expenditure of £32,500  relating expenditure financed from private sector contributions. Further 

adjustmenst of £68,500 in 2021-22 and £52,500 in 2022-23 will be required to remove expenditure funded from private sector contributions 

from existing budgets along with the related financing.

Regeneration and investment 4,400,000 0 0 0 4,400,000 Following the Executive’s decision in June 2019 not to proceed with previous proposals for the stadium development, the capital budget of 

£5m previously allocated for the project in 2019-20 was reprofiled from 2019-20 to 2020-21 and repurposed for use in supporting 

regeneration and investment opportunities. No expenditure was incurred against this budget in 2020-21. £600k of the available budget was 

however been transferred to provide match funding for the Lillyhall Infrastructure scheme as part of the 2020-21 revised budget to offset the 

loss of third party contributions associated with the Lillyhall scheme. The unused budget will be reprofiled and carried forward to 2021-22 

where it will remain available to support regeneration and investment opportunities consistent with the achievement of Council priorities..

Kirkgate Centre Contribution 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 A budget of £100k was approved in 2017-18 to enable the Council to make a capital contribution to support the financing of a project to 

renovate and extend the facilities at the Kirkgate Arts and Heritage Centre, Cockermouth. The Council’s contribution is subject the outcome 

of a bid made to the Heritage Lottery Fund by the charitable body responsible for running the centre. No expenditure was incurred on the 

project during 2020-21. The Council nevertheless remains committed to providing match funding in order to support grant applications by the 

Kirkgate Centre and the unused budget from 2020-21 will be carried forward to 2021-22 to meet this commitment.

Public Toilets Review Works 12,388 0 0 4,840 7,548 A budget of £41,236, brought forward from 2019-20, was included in the 2020-21 revised capital budget for capital investment in public 

conveniences as part of the Council’s on-going review into the provision of those facilities.  During 2020-21, expenditure of £28,848 was 

incurred in relation to the  refurbishment of Central toilets Allonby (transferred to Allonby Parish Council in 2016-17). The remaining budget 

will be carried forward to 2021-22 to allow the programme of transfer/disposals to continue.

Maryport Future High Streets initiative (30,641) (30,641) 0 0 0 The three-year capital programme 2021-22 to 2023-24 includes £12,252k in respect of a number of projects relating to the regeneration of 

Maryport town centre (Maryport Future High Streets initiative). Expenditure on these projects is profiled to be spent across financial years 

2021-22: £3,313k; 2022-23: £5,171k and 2023-24: £3,768k. The primary source of funding for these projects is a capital grant of £11,528k 

from the Governments Future High Streets Fund. The balance is funded from other grants £17k, capital receipts £75k and borrowing £632k. 

No expenditure was profiled to be spent in 2020-21.  However, during 2020-21 the Authority incurred capital expenditure of £30,641 in 

connection with the acquisition of the former Carlton Cinema and Christchurch building. The resulting overspend will be carried forward to 

2021-22  reducing the available budget in 2021-22 from £3,313k to £3,283k.

Capital Outturn  2020-21 - Budget Carry Forward Requests

Funded from:
Budget 

Carried Fwd

P
age 15



Grants 

Capital 

receipts GF Borrowing Explanation for reported variance 

Description £ £ £ £ £

Funded from:
Budget 

Carried Fwd

Workington - Towns funding scheme 481,841 468,015 0 0 13,826 The revised 2020-21 capital budget included £503,136, funded from the Accelerated Towns Fund grant allocation, for the acquisition and 

demolition of the former Opera House, Workington. Following negotiations the current owner offered to demolish the building enabling the 

Authority to purchase the cleared site. Contracts were exchanged on 16 March 2021 with completion due once demolition works complete on 

site.  Total expenditure incurred in 2020-21 totalled £20,295. The unused budget will be carried forward to 2021-22. Accelerated Towns Fund 

Grant not applied to this scheme in 2020-21 was utilised to finance the Underpass & Public Realm Scheme (Browtop enhancements) in 

respect of which the use of Accelerated Towns Fund Grant was also approved. As a result, the unused budget of £481,841 carried forward 

to 2021-22 will be funded in part from borrowing. This additional borrowing is offset by a corresponding reduction in borrowing required to 

meet the cost of the Browtop scheme.
Portfolio Total 7,238,115 1,767,337 128,083 4,840 5,337,855

Policy, Governance and People Resources

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 544,612 544,612 0 0 0 This scheme involves mandatory and discretionary grant support to individuals to meet the cost of housing adaptations that enable people to 

stay living in their own home for longer. The Authority has a statutory duty to provide adaptations to the homes of disabled people who 

qualify for a mandatory DFG. Expenditure on DFGs is fully funded from an annual (ringfenced) grant paid to upper-tier authorities as part of 

the Better Care Funding allocations and cascaded to district councils responsible for providing DFGs. The total budget for DFG in 2020-21 

was £1,377,505. This includes additional grant funding of £163,505 awarded in December 2020. Total expenditure in 2020-21 was £822,893.

During the course of 2020-21, Covid-19 and the measures introduced to control transmission of the virus, had a significant impact on the 

ability of contractors to undertake work related to DFG applications and consequently on the levels of DFG expenditure incurred during the 

year. Despite the challenges experienced in 2020-21, demand for DFG grant assistance remains strong with a significant portion of the 

unused 2020-21 budget already committed to meet the cost of approved applications. All unused budget and associated grant funding will 

carried forward to 2021-22.  

Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) 13,912 0 0 0 13,912 The Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) budget was established to provide grant support to enable empty homes to be brought back into use. 

The remaining budget for this scheme is £71,238  against which expenditure of £57,326 was incurred in 2020-21. The remaining budget will 

be carried forward to 2021-22 to meet  commitments associated with outstanding Empty Homes Grant approvals. At the end of March 2021 

there were three  Empty Homes Grants with works still in progress. It is anticipated that these will be completed in 2021-22.

Conversion of Otley Road 49,783 0 49,783 0 0 The 2020-21 revised capital budget included £180k for the conversion of Council owned property Otley Road, Keswick into residential 

accommodation. Expenditure on the scheme is funded from capital receipts. £130k is included in the 2020-21 capital budget (inclusive of 

£40k budget carried forward from 2019-20) with the remaining budget profiled (£50k) to be spent in 2021-22. As a result of delays to the 

commencement of on site works expenditure incurred on the project in 2020-21 was £80,217, giving rise to an in-year underspend of 

£49,783. This will be carried forward to 2021- 22 to allow the scheme to be completed.

Ladore Toilets - conversion 10,000 0 10,000 0 0 A budget of £44,500, profiled across financial years 2020-21 (£10k) and 2021-22 was established to redevelop the disused toilet block 

adjacent to the Ladore Hotel in the Borrowdale Valley into holiday accommodation. Expenditure on this scheme is financed from capital 

receipts. Commencement of this project has been delayed pending the resolution of planning issues related to the site. As a result of this 

delay no expenditure was incurred on the scheme in 2020-21. The unused budget of £10,000 will be reprofiled and carried forward to 2021-

22.
Portfolio Total 618,307 544,612 59,783 0 13,912

Environmental Services 

Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure 

programmes
160,480 101,198 0 0 59,282 A budget of £179,907k, funded from grants (£114,907) and borrowing (£65,000), was included in the 2020-21 revised capital budget to meet 

the costs of a number of environmental initiatives including the Get Cumbria Buzzing – West Cumbria’s Pollinator project. A further £71,218 

is included in the capital budgets for 2021-22 and 2022-23. During 2020-21 a number of issues have impacted on the delivery of these  

initiatives. These included  the diversion of internal staff resources to progressing projects associated with Workington Town Fund, planning 

and design issues and the impact of Covid-19 on suppliers and project partners. During 2020-21 the Authority incurred costs of £19,427 in 

connection with these projects. These costs were treated as revenue and charged against the revenue budget along with a credit for grant 

funding, received from the Heritage Lottery Fund via Cumbria Wildlife Trust, of £13,709 . No capital costs were incurred in 2020-21 and the 

unused budget, net of the expenditure charged to revenue will be carried forward to 2021-22 to enable remaining projects within the overall 

scheme to be progressed.

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 374,351 60,000 0 0 314,351 The revised capital budget for 2020-21 includes £636,041 in respect of the Browtop enhancement scheme. The scheme involves various 

works to enhance the quality of the public realm in the vicinity of Brow Top, Workington, transform the Central Way underpass and develop 

vacant land adjacent to the Leisure Centre to create a dedicated events and activity area. The scheme is financed from grants and 

contributions of £308,864 including accelerated Towns Fund Grant of £247,864. The remaining expenditure is unfinanced and will be met 

from borrowing of £332,171k. As a consequence of delays caused by design issues, planning permissions and Covid-19, expenditure of 

£261,690 was incurred, resulting in an in year underspend of £374,351. The scheme is expected to be completed in 2021-22 and the budget 

underspend from 2020-21 will be carried forward to 2021-22 to allow the scheme to progress. 

Portfolio Total 534,831 161,198 0 0 373,633

P
age 16



Grants 

Capital 

receipts GF Borrowing Explanation for reported variance 

Description £ £ £ £ £

Funded from:
Budget 

Carried Fwd

Leisure and Tourism

Solway Coast Pathway 15,358 15,358 0 0 0 The Solway Coast Pathway scheme involves the creation of a multi-user coastal pathway, linking Silloth-on-Solway, the West Cumbria Cycle 

network and the Hadrian’s cycle route. Total budget for the scheme is £1.25m funded by grants of £1m from the Coastal Communities Fund 

(CCF) and £250k from the RDPE Tourism Infrastructure Fund. Expenditure of £203k was incurred on the scheme in financial years 2018-19 

and 2019-20 with the remaining budget allocated across financial years 2020-21 (£847k) and 2021-22 (£200k).  The total remaining budget 

for the scheme is £1,046,729. This includes £200k currently profiled to be spent in 2021-22. Expenditure of £831,371 was incurred in 2020-

21.

Works to the pathway were substantially completed during 2020-21. However, third party land ownership legal issues have delayed 

commencement of  the additional works to resurface an existing section of the path and undertake car park improvement works. Once these 

have been resolved the additional capital works will be completed. The project is expected to be fully completed within the 2021-22 financial 

year and is expected to be delivered within budget. The unused budget from 2020-21 will be carried forward to 2021-22 to allow completion of 

the scheme.

Helena Thompson Museum Development 28,523 0 28,523 0 0 This scheme addresses DDA compliance issues, such as surfacing within the courtyard entrance and other capital enhancement works to 

the Museum. The expenditure budget of £211,308 carried forward from 2019-20 is funded from capital receipts. Expenditure of £182,785  

was incurred in 2020-21. The remaining budget will be carried forward to 2021-22 to allow completion of the scheme.

Portfolio Total 43,881 15,358 28,523 0 0

Customer Experience and Innovation

ICT - Server Infrastructure 85,000 0 85,000 0 0 The budget of £85.000 was established to meet the cost of replacing components of the Council's Virtual Server Infrastructure which are now 

nearing the end of their useful life. An order for the hardware (£84,698) was placed in March 2021, with delivery made in May 2021. The  

proposed budget carry-forward will be used to meet this exenditure.

Portfolio Total 85,000 0 85,000 0 0

Total Expenditure Budget Carried 

Fwd
8,520,134 2,488,505 301,389 4,840 5,725,400

P
age 17



Appendix D

Three-year Capital Programme 2021-22 to 2023-24

Revised Budget 

Current 

Budget 

Current 

Budget 

Current 

Budget 

Description 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Economic Growth, Community Devel. & Placemaking

Strategic Acquisitions 379,329 0 379,329 379,329 0 0 379,329

Lillyhall -Infrastructure 2,200,000 0 1,762,506 1,762,506 0 0 1,762,506

Riverbank Works - Millfield Workington 26,495 0 26,525 26,525 0 0 26,525

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ)
1

160,000 345,000 106,167 451,167 400,000 0 851,167

Regeneration and Investment 4,400,000 0 4,400,000 4,400,000 0 0 4,400,000

Markets - plant and equipment 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Solar Panels 0 50,000 0 50,000 0 0 50,000

Kirkgate Centre Contribution 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 100,000

Workington Hall Repair Scheme 211,522 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 250,000

Public Toilets Review Works 41,236 0 12,388 12,388 0 0 12,388

Maryport Future High Streets Initiative 0 3,313,292 (30,641) 3,282,651 5,170,786 3,767,761 12,221,198

Workington - Accelerated Towns funding scheme 502,136 0 481,841 481,841 0 0 481,841

Workington - Towns funding scheme 0 2,100,000 0 2,100,000 12,150,000 6,700,000 20,950,000

Vertical Farm - Grant contribution 0 5,500,000 0 5,500,000 0 0 5,500,000

Total 8,070,718 11,558,292 7,238,115 18,796,407 17,720,786 10,467,761 46,984,954

Policy, Governance and People Resources

Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 1,377,505 1,377,505 554,612 1,932,117 1,377,505 1,377,505 4,687,127

Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) 71,238 0 13,912 13,912 0 0 13,912

Discretionary Grants 0 50,000 0 50,000 0 0 50,000

Conversion of Otley Road 130,000 50,000 49,783 99,783 0 0 99,783

Ladore Toilets conversion 10,000 34,500 10,000 44,500 0 0 44,500

Total 1,588,743 1,512,005 628,307 2,140,312 1,377,505 1,377,505 4,895,322

Environmental Services 

Reinstatement of Public Right of Way - Maryport 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure programmes 179,907 60,082 160,480 220,562 11,136 0 231,698

Dearham Cemetery 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

LATCo - Vehicles & Equipment 40,630 0 0 0 0 0 0

Car Park - Signage & Equipment 16,427 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highfield Community Centre 6,750 0 0 0 0 0 0

Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 636,041 0 374,351 374,351 0 0 374,351

Total 989,755 60,082 534,831 594,913 11,136 0 606,049

Leisure and Tourism

Solway Coast Pathway 846,729 200,000 15,358 215,358 0 0 215,358

Helena Thompson Museum Development 211,308 0 28,523 28,523 0 0 28,523

Total 1,058,037 200,000 43,881 243,881 0 0 243,881

Customer Experience and Innovation

ICT - Server Infrastructure 85,000 0 85,000 85,000 0 0 85,000

Total 85,000 0 85,000 85,000 0 0 85,000

Total Expenditure 11,792,253 13,330,379 8,530,134 21,860,513 19,109,427 11,845,266 52,815,206

FINANCING

DFG Housing Grant 1,377,505 1,377,505 554,612 1,932,117 1,377,505 1,377,505 4,687,127

SCP Housing Grant 0 57,139 0 57,139 0 0 57,139

LEP Growth Deal funding - Lillyhall Development 1,600,000 0 1,271,879 1,271,879 0 0 1,271,879

Coastal Communities Fund grant - Solway Coast Pathway 796,729 0 132,933 132,933 0 0 132,933

Other grants - Solway Coast Pathway 50,000 200,000 (117,575) 82,425 0 0 82,425

Other grants and contributions - Workington  Hall 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Contributions 60,000 0 60,000 60,000 0 0 60,000

HLF grant 114,907 30,082 101,198 131,280 11,136 0 142,416

Accelerated Towns Fund Grant 750,000 0 468,015 468,015 0 0 468,015

HAZ funding - Grant 68,750 171,500 58,084 229,584 229,750 0 459,334

HAZ funding - Private sector contribution
1 32,500 68,500 0 68,500 54,000 0 122,500

Towns Fund Grant 0 2,100,000 0 2,100,000 12,150,000 6,700,000 20,950,000

Future High Streets Grant 0 3,268,064 (30,641) 3,237,423 5,125,014 3,134,761 11,497,198

LEP funding - Vertical Farm (subject to confirmation) 0 5,500,000 0 5,500,000 0 0 5,500,000

5,000,391 12,772,790 2,498,505 15,271,295 18,947,405 11,212,266 45,430,966

Capital Receipts 647,518 263,839 301,389 565,228 45,772 974 611,974

General Fund Balances 93,677 0 4,840 4,840 0 0 4,840

Prudential Borrowing 6,050,667 293,750 5,725,400 6,019,150 116,250 632,026 6,767,426

6,791,862 557,589 6,031,629 6,589,218 162,022 633,000 7,384,240

Total Financing 11,792,253 13,330,379 8,530,134 21,860,513 19,109,427 11,845,266 52,815,206

Total 

2021/22 to 

2023/24

Proposed Carry 

fwd from 

2020/21

Proposed 

Budget  

2021/22

Page 18



Appendix E

Residual

Variance Explanation for reported variance 

Description £

Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking

Maryport Regeneration (HAZ) (32,500) Removal from budget of expenditure funded from private sector contributions (via reduction in budget carry forward).

Markets - plant and equipment (50,000) A budget of £50,000, funded from capital receipts, was included in the revised 2020-21 capital budget to meet the cost of acquiring market stalls 

following the decision to insource management and operation of outdoor markets. During 2020-21, expenditure of £22,639 was incurred on items 

below the Authority's capitalisation threshold. To remove the administrative burden associated with the capitalisation of large numbers of small 

value items which individually and collectively are not material in the context of the Authority's financial statements,  expenditure incurred during 

the year has been expensed and charged against the 2020-21 revenue budget, giving rise to the reported variance. No budget carry-forward has 

been requested. Capital receipts that would have otherwise have been utilised to finance this expenditure has been used to reduce the amount of 

expenditure that would otherwise have been met from borrowing.

Workington Hall Repair Scheme (7,841) £211,522 was included in the revised 2020-21 capital budget to cover the current phase of refurbishment and consolidation works necessary to 

ensure progression towards eventual removal of the building from the At Risk Register. The budgeted expenditure was funded from a grant of 

£150k from Historic England with the balance being met from capital receipts (12k), general fund balances (£44k) and borrowing (£6k). Final 

scheme costs totalled £203,681 giving rise to an underspend of £7,841. Expenditure incurred in 2020-21 was funded from grants of £143,511, 

capital receipts of £16,608 and general fund balances of £43,562.

TOTAL - Econ. Growth, Community Develop. & Placemaking (90,341)

Environmental Services 

Reinstatement of Public Right of Way - Maryport (32,626) The scheme relates to the restoration of the Public Right of Way in Maryport which was closed due to a landslip following Storm Desmond in 

2015. Total budget for the scheme, funded from borrowing, was £100k. The scheme was completed in 2020-21 at a cost of £67,374 (net of  a 

contribution from Cumbria County Council of £25,000), giving rise to the reported underspend of £32,626.

Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure programmes (19,427) A budget of £179,907k, funded from grants (£114,907) and borrowing (£65,000), was included in the 2020-21 revised capital budget to meet the 

costs a number of environmental initiatives including the Get Cumbria Buzzing – West Cumbria’s Pollinator project. During 2020-21 costs of 

£19,427 were incurred by the Authority in connection with this scheme. These costs were not capitalised but were instead treated as revenue and 

charged against the revenue budget along with a credit for grant funding, received from the Heritage Lottery Fund via Cumbria Wildlife Trust of 

£13,709. No capital costs were incurred in 2020-21. The budget carry forward requested has been reduced by the expenditure charged to 

revenue and the utilisation of associated grant funding, giving rise to the reported variances in respect of expenditure and grant funding.  

Dearham Cemetery (5,025) The 2020-21 revised capital budget included £10,000, carried forward from 2019-20 and funded from capital receipts, for drainage works 

necessary to enable a currently unusable section of the cemetery to be used for burials and the internment of cremated remains. Work on this 

scheme was completed in 2020-21 at a cost of £4,975 giving rise to the reported variance (saving) of £5,025.

LATCo - vehicles and Equipment (24,631) The 2020-21 revised capital budget includes £40,630 to meet the cost of vehicle acquisition and installation of CCTV to Refuse Collection 

Vehicles. Expenditure on this scheme is unfinanced and will be met from borrowing. Expenditure of £15,999  was incurred in 2020-21, on the 

acquisition of one new commercial vehicle, giving rise to the reported underspend of £24,631. No budget carry-forward has been requested.

Car Park - signage and equipment (16,427) The revised capital budget for 2020-21 includes £16,427, brought forward from 2019-20, for the acquisition of new car park signage and the 

purchase of equipment needed to facilitate moving some of the parking operation to the MSCP.  The scheme is funded from general fund 

balances. To remove the administrative burden associated with the capitalisation of large numbers of small value items which individually and 

collectively are not material in the context of the Authority's financial statements, all expenditure incurred during 2020-21 (£6,498) has been 

expensed and charged against the 2020-21 revenue budget, giving rise to the reported variance of which £16,627. A budget carry forward has 

not been requested. 

TOTAL - Environmental Services (98,136)

Total Expenditure Variance (188,477)

Residual Variance summary - Capital Outturn  2020-21 

P
age 19



Appendix F

Housing Other

£ £ £

Unapplied balance as at 31 March 2020 1,134,053 57,320 191,212

Capital receipts receivable 2020-21 46,000

Capital grants receivable in 2020-21 1,377,770 2,519,201

Grants received in advance b/f at 1.4.20 0 871,729

Available for allocation in 2020-21 1,180,053 1,435,090 3,582,142

Allocation:

Financing capital budget 2020-21 (318,000) (822,893) (1,626,295)

Allocated to finance capital budget after 2020-21:

 2021/22 (including proposed budget carry forwards) (565,228) (611,752) (1,764,635)

 2022/23 (45,772) 0 0

 2023/24 (974) 0 0

Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget* (45,000) 0 (191,212)

Balance of grants received in advance 0 0

Not currently allocated or ringfenced 205,079 445 0

 *The items identified as 'ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget’ are:

 - £45,000 relating to the proceeds from the sale of Workington Hall Lodge and ring-fenced for improvements to the 

Hall Park.

 - £191,212 relates to a number of specific capital grants. These can only be applied to the purposes for which they 

were received. 

Capital Resources Overview

Current Capital Resources Capital Receipts
Grants & Contributions

Balances:

Page 20



Allerdale Borough Council 

Executive - 21 July 2021 

Revenue Outturn 2020-21 
 

Portfolio holder Councillor Colin Sharpe 
 PH Finance and Legal  

Report from Catherine Nicholson, Chief Officer Assets & S151 
 telephone no: 01900-702503  
 email: catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk  

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

1.0  Reason for the decision 

1.1 To inform members of the revenue outturn position for 2020-21 and to seek 
Members’ approval of the associated budget carry forward requests and 
transfers to and from reserves.  

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 Members are asked to: 
• note the draft revenue outturn position for the year ending 31 March 2021  
• note the impact of the draft revenue outturn position on the Council’s general 

fund and earmarked (general fund) balances 
• approve contributions to earmarked reserves of £8,582,320 comprising: 

planned contributions of £275,000, additional contributions of £2,030,435, 
and additional income from taxation and government grants of £6,276,885. 

3.0 Introduction and Background 

3.1 This report sets out the draft Revenue Outturn position for 2020-21 and explains 
the reasons for significant variances between actual expenditure and the 
Council’s 2020-21 revised budget. 

3.2 This report also: 

 provides details of requested contributions to earmarked reserves 
(section 5) 

 compares actual funding from taxation and government grants against 
budget (section 8) 

 compares quarter 3 forecast outturn with actual outturn (section 9) 

 summarises the impact of the outturn position on earmarked reserves and 
general fund balances (section 10). 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



3.3 Members should note that the information contained in this report is draft and 
may be subject to change following audit of the Council’s 2020-21 Statement of 
Accounts.  Any significant changes will be reported to Executive following 
approval of the audited Statement of Accounts by the Audit Committee in 
November 2021. 

4.0 Summary Draft Revenue Outturn Position 

4.1 The draft Revenue Outturn for 2020-21 is summarised in table 1.  This shows: 

 the revenue budget of £18.1m 

 actual net expenditure, including planned contributions to reserve of 
£16.3m 

 a net underspend of £1.8m 

 requested contributions to earmarked reserves of £2m 

 income from Taxation & Government Grants exceeded budget by £340k; 
£118k will be transferred to earmarked reserves leaving £222k in 2020-21   

 an increase to the budgeted use of General Fund of £38k 

 expenditure from the earmarked reserves is £271k less than budget. 

Table 1 – Summary of 2020-21 Revenue Outturn compared to Revised Budget  

 Revised 
Budget 

Outturn  Variance  Report Ref. 

 £’000 £’000 £’000  

Net Expenditure on Services 15,582 13,602 (1,980)  

Planned Contributions to Reserves 65 275 210  

Parish Precepts 2,458 2,458 0  

Total Net Revenue Expenditure 18,105 16,335 (1,770) Section 5 

Requested Contributions to Reserves 0 2,030 2,030 Section 6 

Sub Total 18,105 18,365 260  

Use of Earmarked Reserves 1,475 1,204 (271) Section 7 

Sub-Total 19,580 19,569 (11)  

Planned use of earmarked balances (1,475) (1,204) 271  

Total Outturn 18,105 18,365 260  

Funding:  

Taxation & Government Grants (18,072) (18,294) (222) Section 8 

Additional Contributions to Reserves 0 0 0  

Release of Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0  

Contribution (from)/to General Fund (33) (71) (38) Section 10 

Total Funding (18,105) (18,365) (260)  

4.2 A breakdown by portfolio of the net revenue outturn position is provided in 
section 5 below.  

 

Page 22



5.0 Analysis of Net Revenue Expenditure against Revised Budget 

5.1 A summary of the favourable Outturn Variance of £1,770k is shown in Table 2 by 
Portfolio, with additional detail provided in Appendices A and B: 

  Table 2 –Summary of Outturn Variance by Portfolio 

 Portfolio 
Annual 
Budget 

Outturn 
Planned 
Contr.  to  
Reserves 

Gross  
Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Environmental Services 4,789 4,790 235 236 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

517 127 0 (390) 

Finance & Legal 4,578 3,235 0 (1,343) 

Policy, Governance & People 
Resources 

2,926 2,778 40 (108) 

Leisure & Tourism 289 225 0 (64) 

Customer Experience & Innovation 2,548 2,447 0 (101) 

Parish Precepts 2,458 2,458 0 0 

Total 18,105 16,060 275 (1,770) 

5.2 Significant variances (i.e. greater than £30k) between budget and outturn by 
portfolio are highlighted below.  

 Environmental Services Portfolio 

5.3 Net expenditure on the Environmental Services Portfolio exceeded the revised 
budget by £236,117.  An additional £70,155 has been requested as a 
contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving a net adverse variance of £306,272. 

  Table 3 – Environmental Services – gross variances exceeding £30k 

Service 

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 
£ 

Unplanned 
Contr. to 
Reserves 

 
£ 

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 
£ 

Bereavement Services (44,178) 0 (44,178) 

Domestic Waste 60,020 0 60,020 

Trade Waste (205,625) 0 (205,625) 

Off-street Owned Car Parks 422,534 0 422,534 

Multi-storey Car Park 109,138 0 109,138 

Sports Development (53,514) 53,514 0 

Sub Total 288,375 53,514 341,889 

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (52,258) 16,641 (35,617) 

Total variance 236,117 70,155 306,272 

 

 

Page 23



Bereavement Services (favourable variance of £44,178) 

5.4 The favourable variance is primarily due to burial fee income exceeding budget 
by £47k in the year, where £28k of this was received in Q4 of the financial year. 
This is due to the increased demand on the service as a result of the pandemic.  

 Domestic Waste (adverse variance of £60,020) 

5.5 The adverse variance is due to the increased number of requests for 
replacement bins in comparison to that allowed for in the budget, and associated 
delivery costs. This variance is increased further by a decision not to implement 
the charge for replacement bins. 

 Trade Waste (favourable variance of £205,625) 

5.6 Although there is an overspend of circa £11k due to the increased number of 
requests for bin replacements and associated delivery costs, this has been 
outweighed by an over-recovery on Trade Waste collection income and a 
reduction in disposal costs than initially anticipated at Revised Budget. 

5.7 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting series of lockdowns, it was 
impossible to accurately predict the number of clients requiring Trade Waste 
collections. This has resulted in a much more favourable position than was 
anticipated. 

 Off-street Owned Car Park (adverse variance of £422,534) 

5.8 Government restrictions and additional lockdown measures, imposed on the 
back of rising Covid-19 cases from a new variant of the virus, has had a 
significant impact on car park fee income.  

 Multi-Storey Car Park (adverse variance of £109,138) 

5.9 As with off-street owned car parks, the fee income of the multi-storey car park 
was significantly affected by the pandemic.  A decision was taken to temporarily 
close the multi-storey car park due to its limited use during government 
restrictions. 

 Sports Development (favourable variance of £53,514 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £53,514) 

5.10 A number of projects have been delayed due to the pandemic which has resulted 
in this favourable variance. The £53k has therefore been requested as a 
contribution to reserves to enable payment of the commitments already in place. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 
Resources Portfolio 

5.11 Net gross favourable (underspend) on the Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking Portfolio is £389,577. £542,499 has been 
requested as a contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving a net adverse 
variance of £152,922. 

Table 4 – Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking – gross 
variances exceeding £30k 

Service 

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 
£ 

Unplanned 
Contr. to 
Reserves 

 
£ 

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 
£ 

Camping & Caravan Sites 60,778 0 60,778 

Workington Town Centre 52,058 0 52,058 

Building Control – Chargeable 64,781 0 64,781 

Festivals & Events (34,291) 30,000 (4,291) 

Asset Transfer (48,503) 48,503 0 

Social Impact Investment Fund (137,354) 137,354 0 

Maryport HAZ (87,464) 87,464 0 

Local Heritage List Campaign (35,000) 35,000 0 

Delivering Economic Benefits (100,000) 100,000 0 

Towns Fund Capacity Funding (40,000) 40,000 0 

Sub Total (304,995) 478,321 173,326 

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (84,582) 64,178 (20,404) 

Total variance (389,577) 542,499 152,922 

Camping & Caravan Sites (adverse variance of £60,778) 

5.12 Although this budget was significantly adjusted at Revised Budget to reflect the 
estimated impact of Covid-19, further lockdown measures announced by the 
government in December 2020 meant the camping & caravan site was closed 
from the end of December to beyond the end of the financial year. This has 
further reduced the Authority’s share of profits from the site in 2020-21. 

Workington town Centre (adverse variance of £52,058) 

5.13 Additional lockdown measures and restrictions on non-essential shops, 
announced in December 2020, has resulted in further losses of income from the 
variable element of quarterly rental income from the shopping centre, compared 
to those estimated at Revised Budget.     

Building Control - Chargeable (adverse variance of £64,781) 

5.14 The current under recovery of projected building control income is due to a 
reduced number of applications being received than estimated. Demand may 
have been affected by the pandemic however the service is also subject to 
competition from the private sector.  

 

Page 25



Festivals & Events (favourable variance of £34,291 offset by a contribution 
to reserves of £30,000) 

5.15 The underspend and transfer to reserves relates to the Festival of the Sea event, 
which was not able to take place during 2020-21 because of the pandemic and is 
now planned to take place in August 2021. This amount has been funded from 
the Social Impact Investment Fund received from Sellafield Ltd.  

Asset Transfer (favourable variance of £48,503 offset by a contribution to 
reserves of £48,503) 

5.16 A number of projects relating to Harris Park Play Area, Central Way Underpass 
and Northside Allotments have been delayed due to the pandemic, which has 
resulted in this favourable variance. The £48.5k has therefore been requested as 
a contribution to reserves to enable payment of the commitments already in 
place. 

Social Impact Investment Fund (favourable variance of £137,354 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £137,354) 

5.17 The underspend in funds this year relates to activity across a number of strands 
of activity within the SIIF. £42.5k from the tackling inequalities strand is to be 
used in augmenting the Resilient Communities fund for 2021-22. The remaining 
underspend relates to the town centre business support and Socio-economic 
activity strands. This funding was allocated to various projects at the start of the 
year which included the development of the new economic strategy and related 
documents and have yet to be finalised, to the creation of jobs to support the 
recovery from the pandemic which have subsequently been supported through 
other external funds. It is now proposed that these resources are utilised in 
supporting the development of the major regeneration programmes that the 
council has successfully progressed in the past twelve months. 

  Maryport HAZ (favourable variance of £87,464 offset by a contribution to 
reserves of £87,464) 

5.18 The £87.5k contribution to reserve is the balance of grant funding received from 
Sellafield Ltd which is ring-fenced for use on the Maryport HAZ scheme. This 
funding was received up front to cover the lifespan of the project (a total of four 
years). 

Local Heritage List Campaign (favourable variance of £35,000 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £35,000) 

5.19 In 2020-21, £70k grant funding was awarded to Allerdale Borough Council as the 
lead authority of a Local Heritage List Campaign project. The first tranche of 
£35k was received in March 2021 and the second tranche of the same amount is 
due in 2021-22. £10k of the funding will be retained by Allerdale, while the 
remaining will be distributed equally to participating partners. 

Delivering Economic Benefits funding (favourable variance of £100,000 
offset by a contribution to reserves of £100,000) 

5.20 Grant funding received from Sellafield Ltd, for use in the 2021-22 financial year, 
to support the delivery of economic benefits to the borough of Allerdale. The 
funding will be used to help increase economic opportunity in the borough, in 
light of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Page 26



Towns Fund capacity funding (favourable variance of £40,000 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £40,000) 

5.21 In late March 2021, following a review of the Authority’s application for Towns 
Fund capacity funding, a government grant of £40k was confirmed, to fund 
additional capacity to support the Authority’s Town Deal. The grant was received 
on 29 March 2021 and is therefore requested to be carried forward for use in 
2021-22.   

Finance & Legal Portfolio 

5.22 The gross favourable variance (underspend) on the Finance & Legal Portfolio is 
£1,343,273.  Of this, £1,248,901 has been requested as a contribution to 
earmarked reserves, leaving a net favourable variance of £94,372. 

  Table 5 – Finance & Legal – gross variances exceeding £30k 

Service 

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 

Unplanned 
Contr. to 
Reserves 

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 

 £ £ £ 

Banking & Interest (49,157) 0 (49,157) 

Contingencies (131,610) 131,610 0 

New Finance System (458,410) 458,410 0 

Food Safety & Occupational Health (115,780) 89,305 (26,475) 

Business Grants COVID-19 (281,225) 236,610 (44,615) 

Council Tax Hardship Fund (246,593) 246,593 0 

Test & Trace Support Payments (97,168) 70,750 (26,418) 

Sub Total (1,379,943) 1,233,278 (146,665) 

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 36,670 15,623 52,293 

Total variance (1,343,273) 1,248,901 (94,372) 

Banking & Interest (favourable variance of £49,157) 

5.23 The reported variance is underpinned by: 

 an underspend in respect of PWLB borrowing costs of £73k, reflecting a 
reduction in external borrowing required to fund the Authority’s capital 
programme as a result of significant underspends against the revised 2020-
21 capital budget and other positive in-year cash flows; as a consequence 
no new borrowing was undertaken in 2020-21 

 unbudgeted impairment losses associated with debt write-offs and an 
increase in the requirement of bad debt provision, at 31 March 2021 of 
£24k. 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



Contingencies (favourable variance of £131,610 offset by contribution to 
reserves of £131,610) 

5.24 The revised budget included a contingency amount to cover unexpected 
expenditure. The unused balance of this provision is requested to be transferred 
into earmarked reserves to meet the commitment of a £20k contribution to the 
Bridge Way project for 2021-22 and 2022-23 (£10k per annum), with the 
remaining balance available to be used towards one off costs relating to the 
restructure.    

New Finance System (favourable variance of £458,410 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £458,410) 

5.25 The budget allocation in 2020-21 enabled the procuring of, and commitment to, a 
new ERP system for the Council. Following the signing of the contract in early 
March 2021, the majority of the expenditure will be incurred in 2021-22 with a go-
live date for the new system of 1 April 2022. 

Food Safety & Occupational Health (favourable variance of £115,780 offset 
by a contribution to reserves of £89,305) 

5.26 Staff within the Food Safety & Occupational Health team have been delivering on 
grant funded Covid-19 enforcement work throughout the year. This has led to a 
favourable variance of £75k, in respect of the team’s salary budget, where staff 
have been unable to be backfilled.  

5.27 The balance of the underspend, £40k, relates to budget provision made to 
provide capacity within the team for staff to be redeployed on preparation work 
required for the implementation of the Arcus system. This work has been delayed 
due to the need to respond to the pandemic in relation to Covid-19 enforcement 
work. The Arcus project work is now planned to be carried out in 2021-22 and 
the £40k is within the contribution to reserves amount of £89k. 

5.28  The remaining £49k contribution to reserves is required to support the cost of 
additional staffing resources, to support businesses, following the easing of 
lockdown measures.  

Business Grants COVID-19 (favourable variance of £281,225 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £236,610) 

5.29 The favourable variance relates to the receipt of additional New Burdens funding 
in relation to the administration of business grants in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic. £228.8k of this funding was received beyond the 2020-21 financial 
year that it relates to and is therefore included in the contribution to reserves 
amount, to extend resources to support the ongoing administration of Covid-19 
business grants in 2021-22. 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



Council Tax Hardship Fund (favourable variance of £246,593 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £246,593) 

5.30 As part of the government’s response to Covid-19, grant funding of £910,462 
was received by the Authority to support economically vulnerable people and 
households in the local area. 

5.31 During 2020-21, £647,234 has been used to provide council tax relief alongside 
existing local council tax support schemes and a further £16,635 has been spent 
outside of the council tax system to support local welfare projects. 

5.32 The balance of £246,593 is requested to be transferred into earmarked reserves 
to continue ongoing support through hardship and discretionary schemes in 
2021-22. 

Test & Trace Support Payments (favourable variance of £97,168 offset by a 
contribution to reserves of £70,750) 

5.33 This favourable variance comprises: 

 Government grant in respect of discretionary support payments to eligible 
individuals. The payments are to support people on low incomes who are 
unable to work from home if they are told to self-isolate by NHS Test & 
Trace and will lose income as a result. The balance of the grant at 31 
March 2021 is £70,750 and is requested to be transferred into Earmarked 
Reserves to allow this support to be provided in 2021-22 

 The balance of the variance is due to additional income received for the 
administration of this grant, which was not built into the budget.  

Policy, Governance & People Resources Portfolio 

5.34 The gross favourable variance (underspend) on the Policy, Governance & 
People Resources Portfolio is £108,634. £121,898 has been requested as a 
contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving a net adverse variance of £13,264. 

  Table 6 – Policy, Governance & People Resources – gross variances 
exceeding £30k 

Service 

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 

Unplanned 
Contr. to 
Reserves 

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 

 £ £ £ 

Lillyhall Project (38,735) 38,735 0 

Strategy, Policy & Performance 91,210 0 91,210 

Housing Improvement Pay Group (39,218) 39,218 0 

Sub Total 13,257 77,953 91,210 

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (121,891) 43,945 (77,946) 

Total variance (108,634) 121,898 13,264 

 

 

Page 29



Lillyhall Project (favourable variance of £38,735 offset by a contribution to 
reserves of £38,735) 

5.35 When the Lillyhall Project was originally drawn up, planning fees were allocated 
to the revenue budget. These fees have subsequently been capitalised.  
Approved capital financing has been applied in 2020-21 to cover this 
expenditure. However, this will leave an overall shortfall for the whole project.  
The £38.7k has therefore been contributed to reserves in order to fund this. 

Strategy, Policy & Performance (adverse variance of £91,210) 

5.36 The budget included £80k of transformational savings which have not been 
deliverable within the current financial year. 

Housing Improvement Pay Group (favourable variance of £39,218 offset by 
a contribution to reserves of £39,218) 

5.37 The favourable variance is in part due to a vacancy existing within the Housing 
Improvement team throughout the year. In addition, the Housing Manager has 
been redeployed onto government grant funded Contact Tracing work as part of 
the Covid-19 contain outbreak management. An interim period of not being able 
to backfill this role has also contributed to an underspend on the salary budget.  

5.38  The overall underspend on this pay group is requested to be transferred into 
earmarked reserves to fund the continuation of an agency Housing Enforcement 
Officer, allowing the Housing Manager to continue to focus on public health work. 

 Customer Experience & Innovation Portfolio 

5.39 The gross favourable variance (underspend) on the Customer Experience & 
Innovation Portfolio is £100,663. Of this, £9,482 has been requested as a 
contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving a net favourable variance of 
£91,181. 

Table 7 – Customer Experience & Innovation – gross variances exceeding £30k 

Service 

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 

Unplanned 
Contr. to 
Reserves 

 

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable) 

 £ £ £ 

Benefits 48,700 0 48,700 

Customer Services Pay Group (44,056) 0 (44,056) 

Sub Total 4,644 0 4,644 

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (105,307) 9,482 (95,825) 

Total variance (100,663) 9,482 (91,181) 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



Benefits (adverse variance of £48,700) 

5.40 The reported variance is underpinned by: 

 £36k adverse variance on housing benefit overpayments recovery income. 
Because of the pandemic, all debt recovery was suspended during Q1 and 
Q2 and any ‘new’ debt from April 2020 to December 2020. Recovery 
through ongoing housing benefit payments ceased as applicants moved 
onto Universal Credit and requests to recover through these payments 
needed to be made.  

 £75k adverse variance in relation to the net position of the Authority’s 
Housing Benefit payments, net of Central Government Grant, compared to 
the mid-year estimate built into the Revised Budget. 

 £62k favourable variance due to the receipt of unbudgeted grant, including 
£32k DHP admin grant and £24k Business Rates New Burdens grant. 

Customer Services Pay Group (favourable variance of £44,056) 

5.41 Three members of the Customer Services team have undertaken secondments 
within the Council during the financial year. This has created underspends on the 
pay group where there have been differences between the budgeted pay for the 
role and the temporary arrangements put in place to backfill the position. One 
position was also not backfilled for a period of 5 months.  

5.42 In addition, a vacancy has existed within the team and one member of staff was 
redeployed onto grant funded Contact Tracing, in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic, for a period of 6 months.   

Other portfolios 

5.43 There are no significant variances (i.e. variances of +/- £30k) to report within the 
following portfolios: 

 Leisure & Tourism 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



6.0  Contributions to Earmarked Reserves  

6.1 Contributions to earmarked reserves allow the Authority to manage its budget 
effectively without impacting on the 2021-22 budget and assists in developing a 
stable medium term financial plan. 

6.2 Contributions totalling £8,582,320 will be made to earmarked reserves. A 
detailed list of these contributions is provided in Appendix C and comprises: 

Revenue Expenditure: 

 £275,000 planned contributions  

 £2,030,435 additional contributions in relation to the re-profiling of the 
2020-21 budget. This re-profile will enable expenditure plans to be met 
without any impact on the 2021-22 budget.  

Revenue Funding: 

 £6,159,593 additional contribution in respect of section 31 grants. This will 
be required to offset the significant reduction in business rates income in 
2021-22, as noted in paragraph 6.23 of the Budget 2021-22 Revenue and 
Capital report and illustrated in tables 4 and 5 of the report. Because the 
demand on the Collection Fund is fixed prior to the start of the year, the 
impact of the additional and extended business rate reliefs awarded by the 
government in 2020-21 in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, will be 
incurred against the general fund in 2021-22. 

 £79,456 income from the governments local tax income guarantee 
funding, which compensates the Authority for 75% of irrecoverable losses 
in council tax and business rates income in respect of 2020-21. Again, 
these losses will be borne by the general fund in 2021-22 and are 
therefore required to be transferred into earmarked reserves to be made 
available in 2021-22.  

 £37,836 favourable variance due to a decrease in the estimated net levy 
payable. This is based on the most recent information provided by the 
Cumbria Business Rates Pool, which Allerdale Borough Council is a 
member of, and is still subject to final calculations. 

7.0  Use of Earmarked Reserves 

7.1 The 2020-21, Revised Budget for projects funded through Earmarked Reserves 
was £1,475k. The outturn for these projects was £1,204k; £271k less than 
budget. 

7.2 The underspend of £271k will be re-profiled for spend in future years. 

 

 

 

 

   

Page 32



Table 8 - Summary of projected expenditure from earmarked reserves 

Reserve Funded projects  
Annual  
Budget 

 
Outturn 

Variance 
 

Re-
profiled 
to future 

years 

Released 
to GF 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Environmental Services 440 430 (10) 10 0 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development & Placemaking 

541 501 (40) 40 0 

Finance & Legal 140 88 (52) 52 0 

Policy, Governance & People 
Resources 

106 69 (37) 37 0 

Leisure & Tourism 61 0 (61) 61 0 

Customer Experience & Innovation 187 116 (71) 71 0 

Total held for service expenditure 1,475 1,204 (271) 271 0 

8.0   Taxation and non-specific grant income & expenditure 

8.1 Details of the Council’s taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure 
for the year compared with budget, are shown in the following table. This 
includes income received from: 

 Non-ring fenced government grants such as Revenue Support Grant and 
New Homes Bonus 

 Council tax and Non Domestic Rates (NNDR). 

 Government grants in response to Covid-19, including the sales, fees and 
charges compensation scheme  

Table 9 - Taxation and non-specific grant income 

 Budget 
£’000 

Outturn 
 £’000 

Variance 
£’000 

Revenue support grant 199 199 0 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 326 326 0 

New Homes Bonus 606 606 0 

Levy Account - Surplus Allocation 0 0 0 

Council tax - excluding parish element 5,400 5,400 0 

Council tax - parish precepts 2,458 2,458 0 

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax  21 21 0 

NNDR funding 12,410 12,448 38 

Other Grants – Covid-19 emergency funding 1,594 1,594 0 

Other – Covid-19 income guarantee  1,218 1,440 222 

Tax Income Guarantee – Council Tax 0 40 40 

Tax Income Guarantee – Business Rates 0 40 40 

 24,232 24,572 340 

Transfer to Earmarked Reserves (6,160) (6,278) (118) 

 18,072 18,294 222 

Page 33



8.2 Taxation and non-specific grant income exceeded the budgeted amount by £340k. 
As noted in section 6 above, £118k relating to council tax and business rates 
income is to be transferred into earmarked reserves to offset the impact of the 20-
21 Collection Fund outturn which will be incurred against the general fund in 2021-
22. 

8.3 The overall increase in funding of taxation and non-specific grant income of £340k 
comprises: 

 £222k additional income under the government’s income compensation 
scheme, compensating the Authority for irrecoverable and unavoidable 
losses from sales, fees and charges income as a result of Covid-19.  
Under the scheme, Authorities are to absorb losses of up to 5% of 
planned 2020-21 sales, fees and charges income and is then 
compensated for eligible ‘net losses’ at 75% thereafter, 

 £80k income under the government’s local tax income guarantee funding, 
as noted in paragraph 6.2, 

 £38k increase in NNDR income largely due to a decrease in the net levy 
payable, also noted in paragraph 6.2, 

 A summary of the NNDR income included in the 2020-21 budget and the 
actual income to be credited to the Council’s general fund in 2020-21, is 
shown in the following table: 

 Table 10 - NNDR funding 2020-21 

Funding element 
Approved 

Budget  
Outturn  Variance  

 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Fixed Elements:    

Allerdale Share of NNDR Income  11,168 11,168 0 

Renewable Energy ‘disregard’ retained 522 522 0 

Net tariff payable to Central Government (7,418) (7,418) 0 

Share of estimated collection fund deficit 138 138 0 

‘Fixed’ element of NNDR income 4,410 4,410 0 

Variable Elements:    

Reconciliation adjustment (prior year 
disregarded income) 

(7) (8) (1) 

Section 31 grant  8,498 8,496 (2) 

Levy payable (net of reduction under pool 
arrangements) 

(491) (450) 41 

Variable element of NNDR income 8,000 8,038 38 

Total Fixed & Variable Elements 12,410 12,448 38 

Transfer funding to Earmarked Reserve (6,160) (6,198) (38) 

Net Credit to the General Fund 6,250 6,250 0 

8.4 The table demonstrates that the credit to the general fund from 2020-21 business 
rates funding is in line with the budget and the projected outturn as reported in 
the quarter 3 finance report. 

Page 34



9.0  In Year Monitoring 

9.1 The Council’s Financial Regulations require the Section 151 Officer (Chief Officer 
Assets & S151) to report the latest financial position against budget to Executive 
on a regular basis. Regular monitoring of the financial performance forms an 
integral part of the framework of financial controls and procedures used by the 
Council to manage financial risks. 

9.2 The quarter 3 monitoring report to Executive, identified a potential favourable 
variance after planned contributions to reserves, and before unplanned 
contributions to reserves, of £467k. This compares to a favourable variance at 
the year-end of £1,770k, a change of £1,303k. After taking into account all 
contributions to reserves (both planned and unplanned), the net variance 
compared to budget is £260k (unfavourable). 

9.3 The difference of £1,303k, is underpinned by the variances reported in Section 5 
of this report and has resulted in the additional contributions to earmarked 
reserves explained in Section 6. 

10.0  General Fund and Earmarked Balances  
10.1 The impact of the provisional revenue outturn on the Council’s general fund (GF) 

and earmarked (E/M) general fund reserves is summarised in the table below: 

Table 11 - Movement in Balances 

  
  

Budget  Actual 

General 
Fund 

Earmarked 
Reserves 

General 
Fund1 

Earmarked 
Reserves 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Opening Balances 3,144 3,248 3,144 3,248 

Transfers to/(from) Reserves:     

Release of E/M Reserves to GF 167 (167) 167 (167) 

Use for capital programme (94)  (72)  

Use to support Revenue Budget (33)  (71)  

Use to support Corporate Priorities     

Planned use of E/M Reserves  (1,475)  (1,204) 

Planned contribution to E/M Reserves  65  275 

Planned contribution to E/M Reserves – 
Taxation and Government Grants 

 6,160  6,278 

Requested cont. to E/M Reserves    2,030 

Increase/(Decrease) in Balance 40 4,583 24 7,212 

Balance at 31 March 2021 3,184 7,831 3,168 10,460 

Use for capital budget carry forwards 0  (5)  

Use to fund 2021-22 Revenue Budget (460)  (460)  

Retained - Minimum Balance (2,700)  (2,700)  

Available for Use 24 7,831 3 10,460 

Impact on General Fund Balances 

10.2 This reserve plays an important part in managing unforeseen risk and cash flow 
management of the Authority.  

Page 35



10.3 The opening General Fund Balance at 1 April 2020 was £3,144k. 

10.4 After accounting for the transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves referred to in the 
preceding paragraphs, a net increase in general fund balances of £24k is made 
during 2020-21. 

10.5 The following allocations have been made from the general fund at 
31 March 2021: 

 £5k to finance capital carry forwards (as outlined in the 2020-21 Capital 
Outturn report) 

 £460k to finance the 2021-22 revenue budget (approved by Council on 3 
March 2021 as part of the ‘Budget 2021-22 – Revenue and Capital’ report) 

 £2,700k to be held as a minimum balance. 

10.6 This leaves an available for use balance at 31 March 2021 of £3k, compared to a 
budgeted available for use balance of £24k.  

Impact on Earmarked Reserves 

10.7 The opening balance on earmarked reserves at 1 April 2020 was £3,248k. The 
revised budget for 2020-21 included planned net contribution to earmarked 
balances of £4,583k. 

10.8 Actual use of earmarked reserves in 2020-21 was £1,371k (£1,204k for revenue 
expenditure and £167k release to General Fund balances). 

10.9 Planned contributions of £275k and requested contributions to reserves, totalling 
£2,030k are detailed in Section 5. 

10.10  Additional contributions from Taxation and Government Grants of £6,278k are 
detailed in Section 6. 

 

11.0  Delivery arrangements 

11.1 Not applicable to this decision/report.  

12.0  Implications and Impact 

 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

12.1 Sound financial management is essential to successful delivery of the Council’s 
financial plans, achievement of value for money, financial sustainability and the 
stewardship and safeguarding of public money. 

 Finance/Resource implications 

12.2 Financial issues and implications are included within the main body of this report. 

 Legal and governance implications  

12.3 There are no legal or governance issues arising from this decision/report. 

 Risk analysis 

12.4 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

Page 36



 Increasing satisfaction and service 

12.5 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Equality impacts 

12.6 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Health and Safety impacts 

12.7 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

12.8 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

12.9 Not applicable to this decision/report. 

 Other significant implications 

12.10  There are no other significant implications arising from report. 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix  Title of appendix 

A 2020-21 Outturn by Portfolio 

B Earmarked Reserves 

C Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 

Background documents available: 

Name of background document Where it is available 

None N/A 

Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 

Claire Felters 
Finance Business Partner 
telephone no: 01900-516935 
email:claire.felters@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Portfolio
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned Contr 
to Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

REVENUE
Environmental Services 4,747,694 4,789,156 4,790,273 1,117 235,000 236,117 70,155 5,095,428 306,272
Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 619,371 517,063 127,486 (389,577) 0 (389,577) 542,499 669,985 152,922
Finance & Legal 4,491,118 4,577,610 3,234,337 (1,343,273) 0 (1,343,273) 1,248,901 4,483,238 (94,372)
Policy, Governance & People Resources 2,969,107 2,926,713 2,778,079 (148,634) 40,000 (108,634) 121,898 2,939,977 13,264
Leisure & Tourism 288,665 288,665 224,569 (64,096) 0 (64,096) 37,500 262,069 (26,596)
Customer Experience & Innovation 2,530,986 2,547,734 2,447,071 (100,663) 0 (100,663) 9,482 2,456,553 (91,181)

REVENUE Sub Total 15,646,941 15,646,941 13,601,815 (2,045,126) 275,000 (1,770,126) 2,030,435 15,907,250 260,309

Parish Precepts 2,458,074 2,458,074 2,458,074 0 0 0 2,458,074 0

TOTAL REVENUE 18,105,015 18,105,015 16,059,889 (2,045,126) 275,000 (1,770,126) 2,030,435 18,365,324 260,309

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net Variance

RESERVE  FUNDED PROJECTS
Environmental Services 413,584 439,548 429,434 (10,114) 10,114 0 0 439,548 0
Economic Growth, Community Development & Placemaking 566,759 540,795 500,657 (40,138) 40,138 0 0 540,795 0
Finance & Legal 140,475 140,475 88,161 (52,314) 52,314 0 0 140,475 0
Policy, Governance & People Resources 106,006 106,006 69,246 (36,760) 36,760 0 0 106,006 0
Leisure & Tourism 60,596 60,596 217 (60,379) 60,379 0 0 60,596 0
Customer Experience & Innovation 187,324 187,324 115,861 (71,463) 71,463 0 0 187,324 0

TOTAL RESERVES 1,474,744 1,474,744 1,203,576 (271,168) 271,169 0 0 1,474,744 0

TOTAL 19,579,759 19,579,759 17,263,465 (2,316,294) 546,169 (1,770,126) 2,030,435 19,840,068 260,309

Summary of Draft Outturn by Portfolio @ 31st March 2021

P
age 39



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve

Net 
Variance

REVENUE
1051 Confidential Waste 3,600 3,600 3,822 222 0 222 0 3,822 222
1053 Bereavement Services (143,760) (139,540) (183,718) (44,178) 0 (44,178) 0 (183,718) (44,178)
1067 Parks and Grounds Maintenance 405,550 405,630 405,867 237 0 237 0 405,867 237
1068 Street Cleansing 986,360 982,060 976,000 (6,060) 0 (6,060) 0 976,000 (6,060)
1071 Animal Welfare 41,695 41,695 56,734 15,039 0 15,039 0 56,734 15,039
1072 Pest Control 5,520 5,520 15,841 10,321 0 10,321 0 15,841 10,321
1075 Domestic Waste 1,893,727 1,893,727 1,850,847 (42,880) 102,900 60,020 0 1,953,747 60,020
1076 Trade Waste (272,354) (272,354) (496,879) (224,525) 18,900 (205,625) 0 (477,979) (205,625)
1077 Recycling 1,043,837 1,043,837 944,627 (99,210) 88,200 (11,010) 0 1,032,827 (11,010)
1079 Environmental Initiatives 43,210 43,210 37,287 (5,923) 0 (5,923) 11,641 48,928 5,718
1083 Off-street - Owned Car Parks (1,003,018) (1,003,018) (580,484) 422,534 0 422,534 0 (580,484) 422,534
1085 Multi-storey Car Park 248,393 248,393 357,531 109,138 0 109,138 0 357,531 109,138
1086 Off-street - Managed Car Parks (28,300) (28,300) (18,123) 10,177 0 10,177 0 (18,123) 10,177
1112 Sports & Leisure Centres 653,036 653,036 645,198 (7,838) 0 (7,838) 0 645,198 (7,838)
1114 Sports Development 41,700 146,700 93,186 (53,514) 0 (53,514) 53,514 146,700 0
1115 Maryport Wave 184,728 184,728 185,857 1,129 0 1,129 0 185,857 1,129
1136 Supporting Leisure Activity 15,000 15,000 10,000 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 5,000 15,000 0
1153 Workington Nature Partnership 14,760 14,760 17,232 2,472 0 2,472 0 17,232 2,472
1166 Multi Storey Car Park Utilities & Maint 117,910 117,910 63,831 (54,079) 25,000 (29,079) 0 88,831 (29,079)
1168 Allerdale Fleet 51,642 51,642 55,040 3,398 0 3,398 0 55,040 3,398
1169 Maryport Open Space improvements S106 0 0 2,146 2,146 0 2,146 0 2,146 2,146
1172 Major Contract Procurement 0 0 (9,884) (9,884) 0 (9,884) 0 (9,884) (9,884)
1182 Waste Contract (2019)-Operational Costs 0 0 (2,190) (2,190) 0 (2,190) 0 (2,190) (2,190)
1195 Waste Company 83,338 19,800 (5,513) (25,313) 0 (25,313) 0 (5,513) (25,313)
5580 Head of Community Services 0 0 2,807 2,807 0 2,807 0 2,807 2,807
5820 Community Services Pay group 204,670 199,960 198,684 (1,276) 0 (1,276) 0 198,684 (1,276)
5960 Sport Parks Development 72,810 73,310 72,144 (1,166) 0 (1,166) 0 72,144 (1,166)
5970 Bereavement Services 83,640 87,850 90,632 2,782 0 2,782 0 90,632 2,782
6574 Siddick Pond - Water Environment Grant 0 0 (70) (70) 0 (70) 0 (70) (70)
6782 Bin Audit Project 0 0 1,819 1,819 0 1,819 0 1,819 1,819

4,747,694 4,789,156 4,790,273 1,117 235,000 236,117 70,155 5,095,428 306,272

PORTFOLIO : ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

P
age 40



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve

Net 
Variance

PORTFOLIO : ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net 
Variance

RESERVES
6096 Post Funding - End In 7,016 7,016 7,016 0 0 0 0 7,016 0
6152 Bereavement Services 6,636 6,636 5,684 (952) 952 0 0 6,636 0
6742 MSCP Utilites & Main Fund 14,932 14,932 14,932 0 0 0 14,932 0
6748 Sports Development 0 25,964 16,048 (9,916) 9,916 0 0 25,964 0
6761 Clean Streets Campaign 0 0 754 754 (754) 0 0 0 0
6780 Allerdale Waste Services 375,000 375,000 375,000 0 0 0 0 375,000 0
6782 Bin Audit Project 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 10,000 0

Total Reserves 413,584 439,548 429,434 (10,114) 10,114 0 0 439,548 0

TOTAL 5,161,278 5,228,704 5,219,707 (8,997) 245,114 236,117 70,155 5,534,976 306,272P
age 41



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

REVENUE
1015 Corporate Property Maintenance 470,140 470,140 447,846 (22,294) 0 (22,294) 0 447,846 (22,294)
1018 Tenanted Properties (204,790) (204,790) (212,746) (7,956) 0 (7,956) 7,955 (204,791) (1)
1019 Industrial Units (281,150) (281,150) (257,233) 23,917 0 23,917 0 (257,233) 23,917
1020 Other Land & Buildings (73,720) (73,720) (75,315) (1,595) 0 (1,595) 0 (75,315) (1,595)
1023 Footway Maintenance 126,940 126,940 122,102 (4,838) 0 (4,838) 4,838 126,940 (0)
1024 Coastal Protection & Inland Flooding 44,000 44,000 43,934 (66) 0 (66) 0 43,934 (66)
1025 Camping & Caravan Sites (387,991) (387,991) (327,213) 60,778 0 60,778 0 (327,213) 60,778
1027 Workington Town Centre (402,900) (402,900) (350,842) 52,058 0 52,058 0 (350,842) 52,058
1028 Circuses & Fairs (3,510) (3,510) 0 3,510 0 3,510 0 0 3,510
1032 Harrington Harbour 22,190 22,190 22,102 (89) 0 (89) 0 22,102 (89)
1054 Building Control - Chargeable (318,940) (318,940) (254,159) 64,781 0 64,781 0 (254,159) 64,781
1058 Planning and Development (382,250) (382,851) (360,969) 21,882 0 21,882 0 (360,969) 21,882
1069 Public Building Cleaning 93,580 93,580 93,289 (291) 0 (291) 0 93,289 (291)
1070 Public Conveniences 106,240 106,240 83,393 (22,847) 0 (22,847) 0 83,393 (22,847)
1073 Markets (18,470) (18,470) 731 19,201 0 19,201 0 731 19,201
1096 Gypsy & Travellers 4,000 4,000 (9,703) (13,703) 0 (13,703) 9,975 272 (3,728)
1203 Reedlands Road 269,677 276,035 277,157 1,122 0 1,122 0 277,157 1,122
1116 Festivals & Events 7,100 7,100 (27,191) (34,291) 0 (34,291) 30,000 2,809 (4,291)
1118 Car Parks Inspection 38,000 38,000 37,991 (9) 0 (9) 0 37,991 (9)
1122 Building Control - Non-Chargeable 1,010 1,010 (5,281) (6,291) 0 (6,291) 0 (5,281) (6,291)
1142 Corporate Property (25,020) (25,020) (25,015) 5 0 5 0 (25,015) 5
1147 Town Centres 0 0 428 428 0 428 0 428 428
1170 Street Naming & Numbering (4,000) (4,000) (8,062) (4,062) 0 (4,062) 0 (8,062) (4,062)
1171 Asset Transfer 50,000 50,000 1,497 (48,503) 0 (48,503) 48,503 50,000 0
1184 Community Stadium 0 0 5,019 5,019 0 5,019 0 5,019 5,019
1185 Housing Development 0 660 (592) (1,252) 0 (1,252) 0 (592) (1,252)
1187 Place Development 0 0 4,384 4,384 0 4,384 0 4,384 4,384
1194 Future HighStreet 15,000 16,500 1,090 (15,410) 0 (15,410) 15,410 16,500 0
5100 Property Services Pay Group 194,270 194,270 201,920 7,650 0 7,650 0 201,920 7,650
5260 Building Control Pay Group 312,110 312,110 309,295 (2,815) 0 (2,815) 0 309,295 (2,815)
5300 Planning and Development Pay Group 387,450 387,450 381,240 (6,210) 0 (6,210) 0 381,240 (6,210)
5440 Regeneration Pay Group 129,610 129,610 124,553 (5,057) 0 (5,057) 0 124,553 (5,057)
5600 Head of Development Services 1,870 1,870 2,848 978 0 978 0 2,848 978
5740 Business Support Unit 180,130 180,130 172,303 (7,827) 0 (7,827) 0 172,303 (7,827)
5800 Estates 138,275 138,275 112,896 (25,379) 0 (25,379) 0 112,896 (25,379)
5910 Programme Director for Maryport Regeneration 120,520 120,520 94,198 (26,322) 0 (26,322) 26,000 120,198 (322)
6510 Disposal of Allerdale Sites 0 0 (300) (300) 0 (300) 0 (300) (300)
6535 Disposal of Allerdale Sites 10,000 4,775 397 (4,378) 0 (4,378) 0 397 (4,378)
6548 Social Impact Investment Fund 0 (105,000) (242,354) (137,354) 0 (137,354) 137,354 (105,000) (0)

PORTFOLIO : ECONOMIC GROWTH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & PLACEMAKING

P
age 42



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

PORTFOLIO : ECONOMIC GROWTH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & PLACEMAKING

6585 Maryport HAZ 0 0 (87,464) (87,464) 0 (87,464) 87,464 (0) (0)
6608 Vertical Farm, Lillyhall 0 0 6,301 6,301 0 6,301 0 6,301 6,301
6610 Local Heritage List Campaign 0 0 (35,000) (35,000) 0 (35,000) 35,000 0 0
6611 Delivering Economic Benefits 0 0 (100,000) (100,000) 0 (100,000) 100,000 0 0
6612 Towns fund capacity funding 0 0 (40,000) (40,000) 0 (40,000) 40,000 0 0
6007 Local Development Framework 0 0 10 10 0 10 0 10 10

Total Revenue 619,371 517,063 127,486 (389,577) 0 (389,577) 542,499 669,985 152,922

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net Variance

RESERVES
6007 Local Development Framework 3,798 3,798 3,798 0 0 0 0 3,798 0
6125 Disposal of ABC Sites 7,553 7,553 7,446 (108) 108 0 0 7,553 0
6142 Community Housing Fund 109,495 109,495 107,000 (2,495) 2,495 0 0 109,495 0
6146 Maryport Shop Front Scheme 20,485 20,485 15,767 (4,718) 4,718 0 0 20,485 0
6720 Footway Lighting Scheme 19,986 19,986 4,320 (15,666) 15,666 0 0 19,986 0
6733 Npower Energy Efficiency Programme 0 0 (1,204) (1,204) 1,204 0 0 0 0
6770 Gypsey & Traveller Sites 2,270 2,270 997 (1,273) 1,273 0 0 2,270 0
6771 Corporate Property 9,433 9,433 9,433 0 0 0 0 9,433 0
6772 Community Stadium 25,000 25,000 17,000 (8,000) 8,000 0 0 25,000 0
6773 Maryport Promenade 7,587 7,587 1,112 (6,475) 6,475 0 0 7,587 0
6774 Future High Streets 68,169 68,169 67,969 (200) 200 0 0 68,169 0
6775 Towns Fund 162,019 70,019 70,019 0 0 0 0 70,019 0
6776 Social Investment Fund 130,964 197,000 197,000 0 0 0 0 197,000 0

Total Reserves 566,759 540,795 500,657 (40,138) 40,138 0 0 540,795 0

TOTAL 1,186,130 1,057,858 628,143 (429,715) 40,138 (389,577) 542,499 1,210,780 152,922

P
age 43



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 

Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

REVENUE
1004 Corporate Management 77,360 77,360 87,997 10,637 0 10,637 0 87,997 10,637
1034 Banking and Interest 996,535 996,535 947,378 (49,157) 0 (49,157) 0 947,378 (49,157)
1035 MRP & Finance Charges 1,133,998 1,127,640 1,128,108 468 0 468 0 1,128,108 468
1036 Insurances 219,065 219,065 213,220 (5,845) 0 (5,845) 0 213,220 (5,845)
1041 Contingencies 165,610 145,610 14,000 (131,610) 0 (131,610) 131,610 145,610 0
1062 Licensing Service (184,660) (184,660) (164,630) 20,030 0 20,030 0 (164,630) 20,030
1063 Land Charges Service (94,140) (94,140) (77,207) 16,933 0 16,933 0 (77,207) 16,933
1078 Health and Safety 1,437 1,437 773 (664) 0 (664) 0 773 (664)
1080 Food and Occupational Health (3,990) (3,990) 745 4,735 0 4,735 0 745 4,735
1081 Environmental Protection (16,150) (16,150) (3,673) 12,477 0 12,477 0 (3,673) 12,477
1123 Pension Deficit 522,800 522,800 522,800 0 0 0 0 522,800 0
1173 Council Tax Discounts 3,500 3,500 2,083 (1,417) 0 (1,417) 0 2,083 (1,417)
1175 New Finance System 390,000 476,400 17,990 (458,410) 0 (458,410) 458,410 476,400 0
1198 ARCUS - Environmental Health 0 0 332 332 0 332 0 332 332
1205 COVID 19 Fixed Penalty Notices 0 0 (1,000) (1,000) 0 (1,000) 0 (1,000) (1,000)
5080 Internal Audit Pay Group 108,863 108,863 87,282 (21,581) 0 (21,581) 10,000 97,282 (11,581)
5120 Finance and Accounting Pay Group 525,219 438,819 438,432 (387) 0 (387) 0 438,432 (387)
5320 Licensing Pay Group 86,430 116,430 118,751 2,321 0 2,321 0 118,751 2,321
5480 Legal Services 160,166 160,166 154,197 (5,969) 0 (5,969) 5,623 159,821 (345)
5520 Head of Financial Services 83,800 83,800 86,922 3,122 0 3,122 0 86,922 3,122
5920 Food Safety & Occupational Health 254,308 296,758 180,978 (115,780) 0 (115,780) 89,305 270,283 (26,475)
5930 Environmental Protection 193,967 234,367 240,046 5,679 0 5,679 0 240,046 5,679
6582 Business Grants COVID-19 (170,000) (170,000) (451,225) (281,225) 0 (281,225) 236,610 (214,615) (44,615)
6583 COVID-19 General Costs 37,000 37,000 33,801 (3,199) 0 (3,199) 0 33,801 (3,199)
6588 Council Tax Hardship Fund 0 0 (246,593) (246,593) 0 (246,593) 246,593 (0) (0)
6590 Test & Trace Support Payments 0 0 (97,168) (97,168) 0 (97,168) 70,750 (26,418) (26,418)

Total Revenue 4,491,118 4,577,610 3,234,337 (1,343,273) 0 (1,343,273) 1,248,901 4,483,238 (94,372)

1038 Parish Precepts 2,458,074 2,458,074 2,458,074 0 0 0 0 2,458,074 0

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net Variance

RESERVES
6017 Legal Counsel 54,684 54,684 45,368 (9,316) 9,316 0 0 54,684 0
6719 Direct Debits & System Developments 27,576 27,576 0 (27,576) 27,576 0 0 27,576 0
6749 Transfer of Land Charges Data 624 624 624 0 0 0 0 624 0
6750 Legal advice re GDPR 16,430 16,430 16,430 0 0 0 0 16,430 0
6765 ICT Audit Work 6,161 6,161 6,161 0 0 0 0 6,161 0
6781 Waste Services - Legal Costs 35,000 35,000 19,578 (15,422) 15,422 0 0 35,000 0

Total Reserves 140,475 140,475 88,161 (52,314) 52,314 0 0 140,475 0

TOTAL 7,089,667 7,176,159 5,780,572 (1,395,587) 52,314 (1,343,273) 1,248,901 7,081,787 (94,372)

PORTFOLIO : FINANCE & LEGAL

P
age 44



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

REVENUE
1000 Communications and Marketing 38,500 38,500 20,197 (18,303) 0 (18,303) 15,000 35,197 (3,303)
1001 Training 68,010 68,010 60,232 (7,778) 0 (7,778) 0 60,232 (7,778)
1002 Corporate Recruitment 5,000 5,000 5,783 783 0 783 0 5,783 783
1003 Pensions 155,500 155,500 148,215 (7,285) 0 (7,285) 0 148,215 (7,285)
1007 Mayoral Services 12,630 12,630 11,553 (1,077) 0 (1,077) 0 11,553 (1,077)
1008 Mayor's Fund 3,000 3,000 (208) (3,208) 0 (3,208) 0 (208) (3,208)
1009 Members Services 245,280 220,380 208,504 (11,876) 0 (11,876) 5,000 213,504 (6,876)
1010 Leaders Services 29,410 29,410 27,779 (1,631) 0 (1,631) 0 27,779 (1,631)
1011 Electoral Registration 50,000 50,000 26,157 (23,843) 0 (23,843) 0 26,157 (23,843)
1012 Elections 45,000 45,000 25,218 (19,782) 40,000 20,218 0 65,218 20,218
1046 Corporate Improvement Team 24,020 24,020 9,717 (14,303) 0 (14,303) 0 9,717 (14,303)
1089 Housing Strat Function (1,040) (1,040) (1,248) (208) 0 (208) 0 (1,248) (208)
1092 Homelessness 1,790 22,140 18,940 (3,200) 0 (3,200) 0 18,940 (3,200)
1093 Assistance - Housing Services (47,183) (47,183) (59,997) (12,814) 0 (12,814) 0 (59,997) (12,814)
1098 Strategic Partnership 32,980 32,980 20,724 (12,256) 0 (12,256) 12,255 32,979 (1)
1100 Grants to Voluntary Organisation 60,329 60,329 60,329 0 0 0 0 60,329 0
1101 Planning Policy 42,150 42,751 36,423 (6,328) 0 (6,328) 0 36,423 (6,328)
1103 Localities and Partnerships 7,995 7,995 4,486 (3,509) 0 (3,509) 0 4,486 (3,509)
1152 Leaders Portfolio 10,000 10,000 9,150 (850) 0 (850) 0 9,150 (850)
1154 Allerdale Options 0 0 (6,791) (6,791) 0 (6,791) 6,790 (1) (1)
1188 Rogue Landlord Enforcement 0 0 340 340 0 340 0 340 340
1193 Cumbria CBL Partnership 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 10,000 0
1197 Moorclose Community Centre 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 10,000 0
1200 Partnership & Collaboration 10,000 10,000 0 (10,000) 0 (10,000) 0 0 (10,000)
1201 Lillyhall Project 27,830 41,865 3,130 (38,735) 0 (38,735) 38,735 41,865 (0)
1202 LGR Options Appraisal 37,500 47,500 46,248 (1,253) 0 (1,253) 0 46,248 (1,253)
1209 Mermbers ward spend 0 4,900 0 (4,900) 0 (4,900) 4,900 4,900 0
5000 Human Resources Pay Group 155,660 155,660 140,368 (15,292) 0 (15,292) 0 140,368 (15,292)
5060 Democratic Services Pay Group 148,150 146,150 145,525 (625) 0 (625) 0 145,525 (625)
5540 Head of Governance 83,800 83,800 86,598 2,798 0 2,798 0 86,598 2,798
5660 Director of Resources & PA 53,040 53,040 48,837 (4,203) 0 (4,203) 0 48,837 (4,203)
5680 Chief Executive & PA 187,950 187,950 185,618 (2,332) 0 (2,332) 0 185,618 (2,332)
5790 Governance Support Assistants 76,810 68,810 66,740 (2,070) 0 (2,070) 0 66,740 (2,070)
5810 Elections - Pay Group 96,760 96,760 100,799 4,039 0 4,039 0 100,799 4,039
5860 Strategy, Policy & Performance 575,633 579,003 670,213 91,210 0 91,210 0 670,213 91,210
5870 Head of Strategy, Policy & Performance 69,640 69,640 72,924 3,284 0 3,284 0 72,924 3,284
5940 Housing Improvement 242,200 201,800 162,582 (39,218) 0 (39,218) 39,218 201,800 0
5950 Emergency Planning, H&S & Homelessness 248,327 248,327 260,712 12,385 0 12,385 0 260,712 12,385
6566 Apprenticeship Incentive Fund 0 0 (500) (500) 0 (500) 0 (500) (500)

PORTFOLIO : POLICY, GOV & PEOPLE RESOURCES

P
age 45



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

PORTFOLIO : POLICY, GOV & PEOPLE RESOURCES

6570 Elections 0 0 (18) (18) 0 (18) 0 (18) (18)
6573 European Election 19 0 0 495 495 0 495 0 495 495
6575 PCC Election 2020 0 0 3,233 3,233 0 3,233 0 3,233 3,233
6576 PARO 2020 0 0 851 851 0 851 0 851 851
6577 Parliamentary Election 2019 0 0 (146) (146) 0 (146) 0 (146) (146)
6578 Rapid Rehousing Pathway (RRP) 0 0 16 16 0 16 0 16 16
6579 Prevention Fund 20,350 0 (976) (976) 0 (976) 0 (976) (976)
6581 COVID-19 Homelessness 132,086 132,086 131,991 (95) 0 (95) 0 131,991 (95)
6584 Domestic Abuse Funding 0 0 164 164 0 164 0 164 164
6586 NSAP 0 0 5,680 5,680 0 5,680 0 5,680 5,680
6601 2021 PARO Costs 0 0 233 233 0 233 0 233 233
6602 2021 PCC/CCC/By-Election 0 0 1,258 1,258 0 1,258 0 1,258 1,258

Total Revenue 2,969,107 2,926,713 2,778,079 (148,634) 40,000 (108,634) 121,898 2,939,977 13,264

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net Variance

RESERVES
6082 IER Work - Elections 4,500 4,500 0 (4,500) 4,500 0 0 4,500 0
6101 Planning Policy 5,952 5,952 5,952 0 0 0 0 5,952 0
6135 Allerdale Options 2,000 2,000 1,216 (784) 784 0 0 2,000 0
6149 Health & Well-being Group 20 20 56 36 (36) 0 0 20 0
6730 Licensing Service Re-design 600 600 0 (600) 600 0 0 600 0
6741 Corporate Priorities-Credit Union 37,600 37,600 37,600 0 0 0 0 37,600 0
6744 Self Build Custom Build 4,000 4,000 6,552 2,552 (2,552) 0 0 4,000 0
6756 Grant Homeless Prevention 10,250 10,250 10,250 0 0 0 0 10,250 0
6759 Strategic Priorities 20,182 20,182 0 (20,182) 20,182 0 0 20,182 0
6777 Arcus - Environmental Health 4,293 4,293 4,293 0 0 0 0 4,293 0
6778 Cumbria CBL Partnership 6,609 6,609 3,326 (3,283) 3,283 0 0 6,609 0
6779 Moorclose Community Centre 10,000 10,000 0 (10,000) 10,000 0 0 10,000 0

Total Reserves 106,006 106,006 69,246 (36,760) 36,760 0 0 106,006 0

TOTAL 3,075,113 3,032,719 2,847,325 (185,394) 76,760 (108,634) 121,898 3,045,983 13,264

P
age 46



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned 
Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

REVENUE
1056 Silloth TIC 11,050 11,050 10,849 (201) 0 (201) 0 10,849 (201)
1106 Contribution to AONB 31,200 31,200 30,985 (215) 0 (215) 0 30,985 (215)
1110 Museums 48,835 48,835 42,800 (6,035) 0 (6,035) 6,000 48,800 (35)
1111 Arts Development 10,150 10,150 7,448 (2,702) 0 (2,702) 0 7,448 (2,702)
1144 Carnegie Trust 75,000 75,000 75,000 0 0 0 0 75,000 0
1158 Tourism Incentive 57,500 57,500 52,326 (5,174) 0 (5,174) 0 52,326 (5,174)
5840 Tourism Pay group 54,930 54,930 54,470 (460) 0 (460) 0 54,470 (460)
6501 Solway  AONB Core 0 0 (17,776) (17,776) 0 (17,776) 0 (17,776) (17,776)
6531 Solway AONB Other Projects 0 0 (13,505) (13,505) 0 (13,505) 13,500 (5) (5)
6592 Farming Advocacy Project 0 0 (28) (28) 0 (28) 0 (28) (28)
6155 Solway AONB 0 0 (18,000) (18,000) 0 (18,000) 18,000 0 0

Total Non-Volatile 288,665 288,665 224,569 (64,096) 0 (64,096) 37,500 262,069 (26,596)

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net Variance

RESERVES
6155 Solway AONB 54,661 54,661 165 (54,496) 54,496 0 0 54,661 0
6755 Remembering the Solway 5,935 5,935 52 (5,883) 5,883 0 0 5,935 0

Total Reserves 60,596 60,596 217 (60,379) 60,379 0 0 60,596 0

TOTAL 349,261 349,261 224,786 (124,475) 60,379 (64,096) 37,500 322,665 (26,596)

PORTFOLIO : LEISURE & TOURISM

P
age 47



Cost 
Centre

Description
Approved 

Budget
Total Annual 

Budget
 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Planned Contr 
to Reserves

Gross 
Variance

Unplanned 
Contr to 
Reserves

 Outturn inc 
Contributions 

to Reserve
Net Variance

REVENUE
1047 IT Services 432,707 432,707 430,216 (2,491) 0 (2,491) 0 430,216 (2,491)
1048 Shared Revenues & Benefits IT Costs 82,584 82,584 76,424 (6,160) 0 (6,160) 0 76,424 (6,160)
1050 Multi-functional Printers 10,530 10,530 7,557 (2,973) 0 (2,973) 0 7,557 (2,973)
1059 Revenue (259,240) (259,240) (281,962) (22,722) 0 (22,722) 0 (281,962) (22,722)
1060 Benefits (522,136) (522,136) (473,436) 48,700 0 48,700 0 (473,436) 48,700
1061 Shared Revs & Bens 113,500 113,500 107,118 (6,382) 0 (6,382) 0 107,118 (6,382)
1064 Community Safety 10,000 10,000 2,087 (7,913) 0 (7,913) 7,913 10,000 0
1065 Emergency Planning 20,914 20,914 19,321 (1,593) 0 (1,593) 0 19,321 (1,593)
1140 ICT Infrastructure Costs 49,700 49,700 48,285 (1,415) 0 (1,415) 0 48,285 (1,415)
1146 Referral Centre 5,000 15,000 17,594 2,594 0 2,594 0 17,594 2,594
1165 Corporate Postage & Stationery 134,030 134,030 122,779 (11,251) 0 (11,251) 0 122,779 (11,251)
1196 Allerdale Local Focus Hub 55,800 55,800 33,590 (22,210) 0 (22,210) 0 33,590 (22,210)
5160 Shared IT Services Pay Group 259,193 259,193 263,901 4,708 0 4,708 0 263,901 4,708
5280 Customer Services Pay Group 482,329 482,329 438,273 (44,056) 0 (44,056) 0 438,273 (44,056)
5500 Head of Customer, Transformation, Commissioning 76,710 76,710 81,283 4,573 0 4,573 0 81,283 4,573
5700 Customer & Transformation 442,402 385,612 392,437 6,825 0 6,825 0 392,437 6,825
5730 Commissioning Support Pay Group 0 0 1,500 1,500 0 1,500 0 1,500 1,500
5850 Revs, Bens & Recovery Pay group 885,400 885,400 868,086 (17,314) 0 (17,314) 0 868,086 (17,314)
5900 Head of Programmes & Projects 70,930 70,930 74,313 3,383 0 3,383 0 74,313 3,383
5980 Street Scene 115,280 115,280 116,809 1,529 0 1,529 0 116,809 1,529
6557 Ferris Maintenance Fund 0 0 (7,780) (7,780) 0 (7,780) 0 (7,780) (7,780)
6561 Universal Credit 0 0 (6,280) (6,280) 0 (6,280) 0 (6,280) (6,280)
6564 Arcus 65,353 65,353 65,353 0 0 0 0 65,353 0
6572 Telco in a Box (TIAB) 0 0 (4,640) (4,640) 0 (4,640) 0 (4,640) (4,640)
6596 AWSL ICT Support Costs 0 63,538 55,813 (7,726) 0 (7,726) 0 55,813 (7,726)
6607 Community Lottery 0 0 (1,569) (1,569) 0 (1,569) 1,569 0 0

Total Revenue 2,530,986 2,547,734 2,447,071 (100,663) 0 (100,663) 9,482 2,456,553 (91,181)

Approved 
Budget

Total Annual 
Budget

 Gross 
Outturn

Gross 
Variance

Change in 
profiling of 
expenditure

Gross 
Variance

-
 Outturn inc 
Change in 
profiling

Net Variance

RESERVES
6147 Major Incident Response 20,000 20,000 1,062 (18,938) 18,938 0 0 20,000 0
6154 IT Services-Corporate Printers 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0 5,000 0
6735 IT Services  34,780 34,780 25,750 (9,030) 9,030 0 0 34,780 0
6753 ARCUS System 127,544 127,544 84,049 (43,495) 43,495 0 0 127,544 0

Total Reserves 187,324 187,324 115,861 (71,463) 71,463 0 0 187,324 0

TOTAL 2,718,310 2,735,058 2,562,932 (172,126) 71,463 (100,663) 9,482 2,643,877 (91,181)

PORTFOLIO : CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE & INNOVATION

P
age 48



£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Local Development Framework (3,798.12) 0.12 3,798.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Footway Lighting Scheme (40,007.00) 4,319.76 (35,687.24) 35,687.24 0.00

Npower Energy Efficiency Programme 0.00 (1,203.50) (1,203.50) 1,203.50 0.00

Community Housing Fund (109,495.28) 107,000.00 (2,495.28) 2,495.28 0.00

MSCP Utilities & Maint fund (54,432.00) 14,500.00 (25,000.00) 14,932.00 (50,000.00) 50,000.00 0.00

Gypsy & Traveller Sites (4,000.00) 996.88 (3,003.12) 3,003.12 0.00

Corporate Property (9,433.00) 9,433.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Community Stadium (25,000.00) 17,000.00 (8,000.00) 8,000.00 0.00

Disposal of Allerdale Sites (7,553.00) 7,445.50 (107.50) 107.50 0.00

Shop Front Improvements (20,485.00) 15,767.00 (4,718.00) 4,718.00 0.00

Maryport Promenade (7,587.00) 1,112.00 (6,475.00) 6,475.00 0.00

Future High Streets (75,693.00) (15,410.00) 67,969.00 (23,134.00) 23,134.00 0.00

Towns Fund (162,019.00) (40,000.00) 70,019.00 (132,000.00) 132,000.00 0.00

Social Investment Fund (130,964.00) 25,964.00 (137,354.00) 197,000.00 (45,354.00) 45,354.00 0.00

Refurbishment Harris Park Play Area (32,263.00) (32,263.00) 32,263.00 0.00

Footway Lighting Moorclose & Pardshaw (4,838.00) (4,838.00) 4,838.00 0.00

Central Way Underpass Maintenance (15,650.00) (15,650.00) 15,650.00 0.00

Northside Allotments Demolition (12,231.00) (12,231.00) 12,231.00 0.00

Local Heritage List Campaign (35,000.00) (35,000.00) 35,000.00 0.00

Gypsy & Traveller  - GTAA Study (9,975.00) (9,975.00) 9,975.00 0.00

Festival of the Sea (30,000.00) (30,000.00) 30,000.00 0.00

Tenanted Properties (7,955.00) (7,955.00) 7,955.00 0.00

Prog Dir Maryport Regen (26,000.00) (26,000.00) 26,000.00 0.00

Maryport HAZ (87,464.00) (87,464.00) 87,464.00 0.00

Delivering Economic Benefits (100,000.00) (100,000.00) 100,000.00 0.00

(650,466.40) 25,964.00 14,500.12 (25,000.00) (554,140.00) 515,588.64 (673,553.64) 673,553.64 0.00

Risk Management/Insurance (3,270.60) 3,270.60 (0.00) 0.00 0.00

Legal Counsel (61,112.66) 6,429.00 45,368.03 (9,315.63) 9,315.63 0.00

Financial System Developments (27,576.10) (27,576.10) 27,576.10 0.00

Transfer of Land Charges Data (624.01) 0.01 624.00 0.00 (0.00) 0.00

Legal advice re GDPR (16,430.50) 0.50 16,430.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ICT Audit Work (6,161.00) 6,161.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ARCUS - Environmental Health (4,293.00) 4,293.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

New Finance System (100,000.00) (458,410.00) (558,410.00) 558,410.00 0.00

Legal Services Support (5,623.00) (5,623.00) 5,623.00 0.00

Arcus System Implementation Backfill (40,305.00) (40,305.00) 40,305.00 0.00

Contingencies (131,610.00) (131,610.00) 131,610.00 0.00

Year end Release 
from

Earmarked Reserves

Economic Growth, Comm Dev & Placemaking

Finance & Legal

Reserves
Balance at 
01/04/2020

Tranfer Between 
Reserves

Held as 
Accounting/
Contingency 

reserves

Planned 
Contributions to 

Reserves

Unplanned 
Contributions to 

Reserves

Forecasted Spend 
2021/22 onwards

Balance at 
31/03/2021

Released to 
General Fund

P
age 49



£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Year end Release 
from

Earmarked Reserves

Reserves
Balance at 
01/04/2020

Tranfer Between 
Reserves

Held as 
Accounting/
Contingency 

reserves

Planned 
Contributions to 

Reserves

Unplanned 
Contributions to 

Reserves

Forecasted Spend 
2021/22 onwards

Balance at 
31/03/2021

Released to 
General Fund

Council Tax Harship Fund (246,593.00) (246,593.00) 246,593.00 0.00

Business Grants Covid-19 (236,610.00) (236,610.00) 236,610.00 0.00

Int Audit Pay Group (10,000.00) (10,000.00) 10,000.00 0.00

Food Safety & Occupational Health staff resource (49,000.00) (49,000.00) 49,000.00 0.00

(219,467.87) 0.00 9,700.11 0.00 (1,178,151.00) 72,876.03 (1,315,042.73) 1,315,042.73 0.00

Provision for Elections 0.00 (40,000.00) (40,000.00) 40,000.00 0.00

Planning Policy (5,952.02) 0.02 5,952.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Corporate Improvement Team Misc (22,086.00) 22,086.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

IER work -Elections (9,000.13) 4,500.00 (4,500.13) 4,500.13 0.00

Licensing Service Re-design (600.40) (600.40) 600.40 0.00

Allerdale Options (5,000.15) 3,000.00 1,216.44 (783.71) 783.71 0.00

Health & Well-being Group (3,112.83) 56.13 (3,056.70) 3,056.70 0.00

Corporate Priorities-Credit Union (37,600.00) 37,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SBCB (49,767.46) 6,551.80 (43,215.66) 43,215.66 0.00

Rogue Landlord Fund (7,429.19) (7,429.19) 7,429.19 0.00

Strategic Priorities (115,182.00) 95,000.00 (20,182.00) 20,182.00 0.00

Grant Homeless Prevention (10,250.00) 10,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Homelessness (18,700.00) 18,700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Cumbria CBL Partnership (6,609.00) 3,326.37 (3,282.63) 3,282.63 0.00

Moorclose Community Centre (10,000.00) (10,000.00) 10,000.00 0.00

Waste Services - Legal Costs (35,000.00) 19,578.26 (15,421.74) 15,421.74 0.00

Residents Survey 2021/22 (15,000.00) (15,000.00) 15,000.00 0.00

Economic Development Strategy work (12,255.00) (12,255.00) 12,255.00 0.00

Employee Engagement activities (6,790.00) (6,790.00) 6,790.00 0.00

Lillyhall Project (38,735.00) (38,735.00) 38,735.00 0.00

Communities Activities Fund (9,900.00) (9,900.00) 9,900.00 0.00

Test and Trace Support Grant (70,750.00) (70,750.00) 70,750.00 0.00

Housing Improvement (39,218.00) (39,218.00) 39,218.00 0.00

(336,289.18) 0.00 143,286.02 (40,000.00) (192,648.00) 84,531.00 (341,120.16) 341,120.16 0.00

Post Funding - Env Intitiatives (7,016.00) 7,016.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bereavement Serv - system upgrade (6,636.00) 5,683.74 (952.26) 952.26 0.00

Sports Development 0.00 (25,964.00) (53,514.00) 16,048.00 (63,430.00) 63,430.00 0.00

Clean Streets Campaign (5,115.10) 754.36 (4,360.74) 4,360.74 0.00

Allerdale Waste Services (385,000.00) 10,000.00 (210,000.00) 375,000.00 (210,000.00) 210,000.00 0.00

Bin Audit 0.00 (10,000.00) (0.08) 10,000.08 0.00 0.00 0.00

Physical Activity on Referral (5,000.00) (5,000.00) 5,000.00 0.00

(403,767.10) (25,964.00) (0.08) (210,000.00) (58,514.00) 414,502.18 (283,743.00) 283,743.00 0.00

Environmental Services

Policy, Gov & People Resources

P
age 50



£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Year end Release 
from

Earmarked Reserves

Reserves
Balance at 
01/04/2020

Tranfer Between 
Reserves

Held as 
Accounting/
Contingency 

reserves

Planned 
Contributions to 

Reserves

Unplanned 
Contributions to 

Reserves

Forecasted Spend 
2021/22 onwards

Balance at 
31/03/2021

Released to 
General Fund

Solway AONB (54,661.66) (18,000.00) 164.88 (72,496.78) 72,496.78 0.00

Remembering the Solway (5,935.59) 51.75 (5,883.84) 5,883.84 0.00

Promotional digital production - Museums (6,000.00) (6,000.00) 6,000.00 0.00

Solway AONB Other Projects (13,500.00) (13,500.00) 13,500.00 0.00

(60,597.25) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (37,500.00) 216.63 (97,880.62) 97,880.62 0.00

Shared Revs & Bens (38,297.00) (38,297.00) 38,297.00 0.00

Major Incident Response (63,748.00) 1,061.85 (62,686.15) 62,686.15 0.00

IT Services - corporate printers (13,229.00) 5,000.00 (8,229.00) 8,229.00 0.00

ARCUS System (127,544.00) 84,049.00 (43,495.00) 43,495.00 0.00

ICT Infrastructure Costs (25,000.00) 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ICT Training (9,780.00) 750.20 (9,029.80) 9,029.80 0.00

Community Lottery (1,569.00) (1,569.00) 1,569.00 0.00

Community Safety (7,913.00) (7,913.00) 7,913.00 0.00

(277,598.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (9,482.00) 115,861.05 (171,218.95) 171,218.95 0.00

NNDR Rate Pool Volatility Fund (144,713.69) (144,713.69) 0.00 144,713.69

Business Rate Income (321,000.00) (321,000.00) 0.00 321,000.00

Section 31 NNDR (360,000.00) (6,276,884.72) (6,636,884.72) 6,159,593.00 477,291.72

Emergency Planning - Flooding (28,260.00) (28,260.00) 0.00 28,260.00

Hugh Barbour Bequest (8,661.00) (8,661.00) 0.00 8,661.00

Enterprise Answers Loan & Accrued Inerest (437,099.30) (437,099.30) 0.00 437,099.30

(1,299,733.99) 0.00 0.00 (6,276,884.72) 0.00 0.00 (7,576,618.71) 6,159,593.00 1,417,025.71

Total Earmarked Reserves (3,247,919.79) 0.00 167,486.17 (6,551,884.72) (2,030,435.00) 1,203,575.53 (10,459,177.81) 9,042,152.10 1,417,025.71

Leisure & Tourism

Customer Experience & Innovation

Corporate resources - * held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specific risks

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 52



Cost Centre
Net underspend

£
Comments

Planned
£

Unplanned
£

Env Initiatives 5,923

Refurbishment of Harris Park Play Area, installation of seats at Harrington Nature Reserve and supply of wild 
flowers at various sites, all delayed due to the pandemic. Purchase Orders to the value of this carry forward are 
outstanding and work is scheduled to start in April/May 2021. Year end Capital write offs have now reduced the 
underspend to below the carry forward request.

11,641

Leisure Activity ABC 5,000
Delivery of a pilot partnership scheme of "Physical Activity on Referral" which was delayed due to the 
pandemic. Purchase Order has been placed in 2020-21 yet is still outstanding due to leisure facilities being 
closed as a result of the lockdown.

5,000

Waste N/A To set aside agreed contract variation with AWSL 210,000

Sports Development 53,514

SIF funding approved to fund:
£15k contribution towards the redevelopment of Barton Laws football changing rooms as per the agreement 
between Allerdale Borough Council & Wigton Town Council, paid in May 2021.

The remaining £38,514 relates to:
• final payments for over 20 grants awarded in 2020-21, 90% of grants value has been given up front when 
awarded and the remaining 10% is due on completion of the project
• playground equipment ordered in 2020-21 but delayed due to the pandemic, due to be installed in May/June 
2021.

53,514

Multi Storey C/P U&M 54,079
An annual contribution to reserves has been included within the budget to create a maintenance reserve for the 
MSCP.

25,000

Environmental Services Total 235,000 70,155

Tenanted Properties 7,956
Money will be required to refurbish 3 properties in order for them to achieve a letting. Work on one of the 
properties is due to take place in May/June at a cost of £4.6k. The cost of refurbishing the other two properties 
is estimated to be £5k per property. The full year general maintenance budget in this cost centre is £7.8k.

7,955

Footway Lighting 4,838
Replacement footway lighting at Moorclose Shops and Pardshaw.  Works were delayed due to Covid 
restricitions. The Pardshaw work is complete and paid for in May 2021 and an outstanding Purchase Order 
(raised in December 2020) for the Moorclose Shops.

4,838

2020-21 Contributions to Earmarked Reserves

Environmental Services

Economic Growth, Comm Dev & Placemaking

P
age 53



Refurbishment of Harris Park Play Area delayed due to the pandemic. Purchase order to the value of this carry 
forward is outstanding and works are scheduled to take place April/May 2021.

20,622

Committed sum relating to 30 year maintenance costs associated with the Central Way Underpass, Workington 
as part of the s278 Agreement.                     

15,650

Costs relating to the demolition, site clearance and asbestos removal at Northside Allotments. This work is 
currently out to tender and due to start in mid-May. Delays have been due to the requirement for an asebestos 
survey and the need to prioritise other projects relating to the Workington Towns Fund grant.

12,231

Prog Dir Maryport 
Regen

26,322
During 2020-21, Covid work undertakend by the Programme Director was supported by grant funding, resulting 
in an underspend on their salary budget.  Budget is required to make up salary requirements in 2021-22 for the 
Programme Director. 

26,000

Maryport HAZ 87,464
Balance of grant funding received from Sellafield ring fenced for use on the Maryport HAZ scheme.  This 
funding was received up front to cover the lifespan of the project (a total of four years).

87,464

Future High Street 
funds

15,410

To fund continued communication with the public in relation to the Future High Street scheme, which is not 
covered by the grant. The budget was originally expected to be needed to fund the fees to exercise Option to 
Purchase on buildings. These costs have been capitalised and this budget is now proposed to be carried 
forward and used to support conitnued communication with the public throughout the scheme.

15,410

Local Heritage List 35,000

Grant awarded by MHCLG to support the development of Local Heritage lists. The £35k, received in March 
2021, is the first of two tranches, and a second tranche of £35k, is due in 2021-22. Allerdale BC are the lead 
authority for this project and only £10k of the £70k will be retained by Allerdale BC, while the remaining £60k 
will be distributed equally to partners.

35,000

Gypsy & Traveller 13,703

This money relates to the GTAA study which Allerdale are the lead partner and other Cumbria LAs and two 
National Parks have contributed towards.  The study was due to be completed by the end of March 2021 but 
due to Covid restrictions the timescale for completion of this commissioned work has slipped. It is now 
estimated that the work and final payments should be completed no later than the end of June 2021.

9,975

Social Impact 
Investment Fund

137,354
The underpend relates to activity across a number of strands of activity within the SIIF. It is now proposed that 
these resources are utilised in supproting the development of the major regeneration programmes that the 
council has successfully progressed in the past twelve months.

137,354

Festivals & Events 34,291
2020-21 SIF money was approved for use on Festivals. This was earmarked by the service for the Festival of 
the Sea event. This event did not take place due to the pandemic and is now scheduled to take place in August 
2021.

30,000

Towns Fund Capacity 40,000 Government capacity funding for business case development, received late March 2021. 40,000

Delivering Economic 
Benefits

100,000
Grant awarded by Sellafield Ltd, for the purposes of delivering economic benefits to the borough of Allerdale in 
light of the Covid-19 pandemic, with particular reference to increasing economic opportunity in the borough. 
Grant period 31/03/2021 to 31/03/2022.

100,000

Economic Growth, Comm Dev & Placemaking Total 0 542,499

Asset Transfer 48,503

P
age 54



Int Audit Pay Group 21,581
To contibute towards the cost of buying in internal audit support, to ensure delivery of statutory audits, due to 
vacancies within the service. 

10,000

Legal Services 5,969
Following the temporary reduction in hours of one member of staff, external legal support is required to backfill 
this resource and cover an increase in legal work relating to property, particularly around projects.

5,623

Budget provision was made in 2020-21 to allow for the backfill of staff redeployed on preparation work, required 
for the implementation of the Arcus system, within the Enforcement Service. This work has been delayed due 
the need to respond to the pandemic in relation to Covid enforcement work. The Arcus project work is now 
planned to be carried out in 2021-22.

40,305

Due to the lifting of the Covid-19 lockdown, additional resource is required to visit premises in both an advisory 
and enforcement capacity. In addition to this, the department is now responsible for pavement licences and 
many premises have experienced changes during lockdown, e.g. closures, transfers of ownership, change of 
DPS etc. This is adding to the existing workload and a full audit of premises is required to ensure that 
information is up to date. 

49,000

Contingencies 131,610
From the unused balance of the contingency budget provision made in 2020-21, £20,000 is committed to make 
a contribution to the Bridge Way project for 2021-22 & 2022-23. The remaining balance will be used towards 
one off costs of the Authority's new structure.

131,610

Council Tax Hardship 
Fund

246,593
The balance of the Council Tax Hardship fund provided by the government to support economically vulnerable 
people and households in the local area will be used to continue ongoing support through hardship and 
discretionary schemes in 2021-22.

246,593

Business Grants 
Covid-19

281,225
Central Government funding received May 2021, to fund resource requirements in relation to the additional 
burdens placed on local authorities, regarding the administartion and delivery of business grants in response to 
the pandemic. 

236,610

Local Authority Test 
and Trace Support

97,168

Test and Trace Support Payment Grant unspent at 31/03/2021. This grant has been provided by Central 
Government to enable the Authority to provide discretionary support payments of £500 to eligible individuals. 
This is to support people on low incomes who are unable to work from home if they are told to self-isolate by 
NHS Test and Trace and will lose income as a result. The balance of the grant is requested to be transferred 
into Earmarked Reserves to allow this support to be provided in 2021-22.

70,750

New finance system 458,410

Budget allocation in 2020-21 enabled the commitment of procuring a new ERP system for the Council. The 
project was expected to span the two financial years, 2020-21 and 2021-22, and following the signing of the 
contract in early March 2021, followed by the required resting period, the majority of expenditure will be incurred 
in 2021-22.

458,410

Finance & Legal Total 0 1,248,901

Finance & Legal

Food Safety & 
Occupational Health

115,780

P
age 55



Comms & Marketing 18,303
To cover the part of the costs of the 2021-22 Residents Survey. The base budget includes 50% of the costs of 
the Survey, which is carried forward in the years when the survey isn't carried out.

15,000

Economic Regen 12,256

An element of budget within 2020-21 was left unallocated in case there was any further increases on the 
economic development stategy work - there has been a number of elements added during the course of the 
year and therefore costs have increased. The carry forward will be used to cover any increase on the final bill or 
be used to contribute to similar costs, i.e. business cases, in 2021-22. 

12,255

Allerdale Options 6,791
Savings as a result of the salary sacrafice schemes carried out throughout the year to be spent on Employee 
Engagement activities as required.

6,790

Lillyhall Project 38,735

Revenue budget was allocated (from the project support budget) to fund planning fees for the Lillyhall project.  
These fees have now been capitalised.  Approved capital financiing has been applied in 2020-21 to cover this 
expenditure, however, this will leave an overall shortfall for the whole project.  A capital budget bid will be 
submitted in 2021-22 (revised budget) to include the £38k fees and the budget carry forward will be used to 
fund this bid.

38,735

Housing Improvement 39,218

The Housing Manager has been leading on Track and Trace and their salary has been funded via COMF 
funding from Cumbria CC. To support the delivery of Housing Enforcement, (backfill Housing Manager post), an 
Agency Housing Enforcement Officer was recruited for 6 months from Feb 2021. The requested transfer 
amount is to continue this support during 2021-22.

39,218

Members Allowances 4,900
A Full Council decision was made in January 2021, to create a community activities fund, in place of increasing 
Councillor basic allowances by £100.

4,900

Members Services 11,876
A Full Council decision was made in January 2021 to supplement the community activities fund with any 
underspend in year on the Members Services budget. 

5,000

Elections 19,782 Planned contribution towards the future costs of Allerdale Elections. 40,000

Policy, Gov & People Resources Total 40,000 121,898

Museums 6,035
Digital production to promote museums within Allerdale was delayed due to the pandemic. This work has been 
committed by a purchase order, raised in 2020-21 and cannot be absorbed within the 2021-22 budget allocation 
of £6.8k.

6,000

Solway AONB 72,496 Funding from Natural England to carry out work at Silloth Dunes. 18,000

Solway AONB Other 
Projects

13,505
This is a ten year Stewardship Grant from the RPA. The work that this grant is for is continuous from year to 
year throughout a ten year period and is therefore required to be carried forward. 

13,500

Leisure & Tourism Total 0 37,500

Community Safety 7,913 To support community safety projects in 2021-22. 7,913

Community Lottery 1,569 Allerdale Borough Council share of proceeds collected to be distributed to good causes. 1,569

Customer Experience & Innovation Total 0 9,482

Leisure & Tourism

Customer Experience & Innovation

Policy, Gov & People Resources

P
age 56



Section 31 NNDR 6,276,885

Additional government grants in respect of additional and expanded business rates relief, and income under the 
government's local tax income guarantee funding. The funding will be required to offset the significant reduction 
in business rates income in 2021-22, when the impact of the reliefs and income losses will impact the general 
fund.

6,276,885

Corporate Resources Total 6,276,885 0

GRAND TOTAL 6,551,885 2,030,435

Taxation and non-specific grant income

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 58



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 02 September 2021 

 

Referral from Council, 28 July 2021 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Mike Johnson 

Economic Growth, Community Development and 
Placemaking portfolio 

Report from    Ian Hinde, Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 The Council has referred the amended motion accepted at Council on 28 July 2021 
for consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Audit 
Committee. The Committee needs to consider this referral and determine its 
response and approach. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee considers the Council referral and agrees it response. 
 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 At Council on 28 July 2021 Councillor Peter Little submitted the following motion – 

‘Many of us will have seen recent news reports of people living in squalid housing 
as Matt Hancock condemns 'horrific' conditions exposed by ITV. Examples include 
damp, mouldy conditions; people having to repeatedly report faults and a lack of 
empathy shown by landlords. The Housing Act 2004 means that by law landlords 
must make sure that a person's home is 'fit for human habitation' which means that 
it is safe, healthy and free from things that can cause a person serious harm. The 
Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018 is a power for tenants to hold their 
landlord, including registered providers, to account without having to rely on their 
local authority to do so. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



Bad housing costs the NHS an estimated £1.4 million each year and there is a clear 
link between poor housing conditions and health problems including respiratory 
issues, physical pain and mental health. Many residents in my Ward often contact 
me to express concerns they have with housing conditions and feel that they are 
hitting a brick wall when reporting problems. In some cases, many have reported 
the same problem on numerous occasions and feel they are being ignored. I have 
seen some of the conditions residents are living in and to put it mildly, they are 
appalling. 

As the local authority, Allerdale Borough Council has a responsibility to ensure 
residents live in housing that is sanitary and fit for purpose. Before the Pandemic, 
18% of homes in England were classed as 'non-decent' which means: 

- It does not meet the basic legal health and safety standards for housing 

- It is not in a reasonable state of repair 

- It does not have reasonably modern facilities and services 

- It has insulation or heating that is not effective 

As we enter the Covid recovery phase, millions will still be left in poor quality, 
unsafe and dangerous homes. There is no question that the housing crisis in Britain 
is indisputable. Simply put, there are not enough alternative, affordable homes to 
rent for the majority of people living in poor quality housing. The Government 
recently announced its bill on planning reform so that they can build more high 
quality housing that people want to live in but that is not enough. That action needs 
to be implemented at the earliest opportunity. 

It is therefore my recommendation that members of this Council supports this 
motion in that we, Allerdale Borough Council, work more closely with both social 
and private housing landlords. We will hold to account the Government and 
landlords where significant failures in social housing conditions are identified and 
tenants do not receive a resolution’. 

3.2 The amendment to Cllr Little's motion submitted and agreed at the Council meeting 
was that after "that we..." in the final paragraph should read as follows:  

"Allerdale Borough Council instruct the Overview & Scrutiny and Audit Committees 
to look at... 

1.)  The effectiveness of the council's current approach when engaging with 
tenants, landlords and social landlords. 

2.)  Ensuring that earlier recommendations from the O&S committee have been 
implemented. 

3.)  Lessons learnt from the recent complaint to the Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman, who found the council to be at fault when handling a 
resident's complaint regarding a private landlord. 

Page 60



4.)  How the council can improve public awareness of its powers under the 2004 
housing act and promote how Allerdale can assist local residents in need of 
support when dealing with negligent landlords." 

 

4.0  Content  

 
4.1 The Committee needs to consider the referral from Council and determine what 

actions need to be taken to address the content. 

4.2 With regard to points 1 and 2 of the amendment, the Committee has previously 
considered the Housing Enforcement Policy at draft stage in December 2017, with 
an update on progress the following year. 

 At that time the Committee made no specific recommendations on content. 

 The current policy is publicly available on the Council’s website at the link provided 
below in ‘Background documents available’. 

4.3 With regard to pint 3 of the amendment the Local Government Ombudsman 
summarised their findings referred to in the amendment as follows: Mr X 
complained the Council failed to pursue his landlord regarding urgent repairs 
needed at his home. He also complained the Council failed to keep a record of his 
first complaint and responded to his second complaint incorrectly. He said the 
Council did not respond to his requests to escalate his complaints about the 
Council’s complaint handling. He said this situation caused him stress and 
negatively affected his physical health. The Council was at fault when it failed to 
escalate Mr X’s complaint at his request and delayed tracing Mr X’s landlord. The 
Council has agreed to make a payment of £100 to Mr X to recognise the frustration 
he experienced because of this. 

4.4 With regard to point 4 of the amendment the Council has a strong housing section 
on its website though the Committee may wish to consider other aspects of 
engaging with the public to improve awareness. 

 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 The Committee could determine an approach from the following list:  

 Agree with the Chairs of Audit Committee which aspects each committee will 
consider either jointly or separately before agreeing any actions 

 Run a task and finish group (though three are already suggested)  

 Hold a meeting on this specific topic, either formally or informally 

 Timetable a section of a future Committee meeting to discuss the issue 

 Consider any other solutions offered by Committee members or others 
 

Page 61



6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

 This will contribute to the Council Strategy themes: 

 Outstanding local services 

 Thriving towns and villages 

 Resilient communities 
 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 The main implication is for staff time required to service any meetings. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 None associated with the Committee selecting its agreed course of action. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

That the Committee 
does not determine 
any 
recommendations 
for service 
improvement. 

Service improvements 
are not created. 

Close liaison 
between Overview 
and Scrutiny and 
Audit Committees; 
internal and external 
advice sought as and 
when needed. 

Low 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

 The course of action selected should result in improvements in the service being 
agreed and implemented. 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 Not for this process. Depending on which course of action the Committee selects, it 
may be appropriate to consider the equality impacts for the next steps.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 None at this stage. The course of action selected should result in improvements in 
the service being agreed and implemented. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 None at this stage. The course of action selected should result in improvements in 
the service being agreed and implemented. 

Page 62



6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 None at this stage. The Committee may choose to consider which will be the most 
effective and least impactful method to deliver its selected course of action. 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background 
document 

Where it is available 

Local Government 
Ombudsman decision 
notice 

https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/private-housing/19-
017-356 

Housing Enforcement 
Policy 

https://www-
cloudfront.allerdale.gov.uk/media/filer_public/c0/76/c0761a17-
8d95-4e19-905c-7b6f5a21ec73/housing_enforcement.pdf 
 

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Report author – Ian Hinde 
Contact officer name – Ian Hinde 
Job title – Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) 
Email address – ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk    Tel no. 01900 516664 

Page 63

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.lgo.org.uk%2Fdecisions%2Fhousing%2Fprivate-housing%2F19-017-356&data=04%7C01%7Cian.hinde%40allerdale.gov.uk%7C1c3680bb3d6f4b37cfed08d9618bc752%7Ca10953b672334b77b858e13f522d29c8%7C0%7C0%7C637648075230602870%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=N8%2Bm3Vuxucd%2BxYk%2FhKDT0A5F%2Fdv42fXdXcbWCNHw5Zg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.lgo.org.uk%2Fdecisions%2Fhousing%2Fprivate-housing%2F19-017-356&data=04%7C01%7Cian.hinde%40allerdale.gov.uk%7C1c3680bb3d6f4b37cfed08d9618bc752%7Ca10953b672334b77b858e13f522d29c8%7C0%7C0%7C637648075230602870%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=N8%2Bm3Vuxucd%2BxYk%2FhKDT0A5F%2Fdv42fXdXcbWCNHw5Zg%3D&reserved=0
https://www-cloudfront.allerdale.gov.uk/media/filer_public/c0/76/c0761a17-8d95-4e19-905c-7b6f5a21ec73/housing_enforcement.pdf
https://www-cloudfront.allerdale.gov.uk/media/filer_public/c0/76/c0761a17-8d95-4e19-905c-7b6f5a21ec73/housing_enforcement.pdf
https://www-cloudfront.allerdale.gov.uk/media/filer_public/c0/76/c0761a17-8d95-4e19-905c-7b6f5a21ec73/housing_enforcement.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



1 
 

  

Final Report of the  

Response to the Pandemic  

Task and Finish Group   

 

September 2021 
 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 
 Page 65

Agenda Item 10



2 
 

Background and membership 

This report summarises the work of the Task and Finish Group exploring the Council’s 

approach to dealing with and developing its response to the pandemic. 

The group members were: 

 Councillor Michael Heaslip (chair) 

 Councillor Peter Kendall 

 Councillor Elaine Lynch 

 Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 

 Councillor Paul Scott 

 

The following Terms of Reference were agreed:  

 

  Consider and scrutinise the effects of the pandemic on Council services and operations 

including how the Council responded and how services have been adapted  

  Consider and scrutinise the ‘test and trace’ scheme and its local implementation  

  Question any under-performance or significant variances caused by the pandemic 

response and highlight any valuable lessons learned or specific concerns in case of a 

similar situation  

  Note all completed work and highlight / commend strong performance  

 Identify any short, medium or long term actions arising which could improve 

operational performance and corporate resilience to future waves of Covid-19 (or any 

other pandemic/emergency scenario)  

  Make recommendations for any improvements 

 

National and legal context 

The legal context for managing outbreaks of communicable disease which present a risk to 

the health of the public requiring urgent investigation and management is covered by the 

following: 

 

1. Public Health England (Health and Social Care Act 2012) 

2. Directors of Public Health (Health and Social Care Act 2012) 

3. Chief Environmental Health Officers (Public Health (Control of Infectious Disease) Act 

1984) 

Page 66



3 
 

4. NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups 

5. Other responders: specific responsibilities to respond to major incidents (Civil 

Contingencies Act 2004) 

6. The Coronavirus Act 2020 

 

Local authorities (specifically through public health and environmental health) together with 

Public Health England have primary responsibility for the delivery and management of public 

health actions to be taken in relation to outbreaks of communicable disease through local 

health protection partnerships. 

 

The initial response in Cumbria 

The initial response was set up as detailed below (highlighted aspects only, more groups and 

sub-groups were developed for different areas of need): 

 

 Directors of Public Health have primary responsibility for the health of their 

communities and this applies to Cumbria 

 The Health Protection Board met weekly and an incident management hub (including 

Allerdale Borough Council staff) met daily including weekends. 

 Daily incident management meetings included all the district councils, Public Health 

England, NHS, the public health staff team at Cumbria County Council and the Director 

of Public Health. 

 Outbreak control teams would meet when required: for example an Education 

Outbreak Control meeting to discuss cases linked to schools, this was daily due to new 

cases in schools arising each day; and the Care Home Outbreak control was also 

meeting daily – Allerdale staff were not part of this but would receive minutes and 

contact trace staff for their out of work contacts. 

 
All incidents and outbreaks were discussed at the daily meetings which worked extremely 

well and those involved felt it meant they get the right information, guidance and advice. All 

districts and agencies felt these meetings were having a positive effect and members learned 

a lot and felt valued with great confidence in this approach. 

 

A daily operating group met daily through the working week to set actions and have longer 

practical discussions about cases. 

 

The Director of Public Health was required to produce an outbreak control plan. These 

documents can be accessed here: 

 

Outbreak Control Plan Part 1 – Strategy, Management and Oversight 
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124112.pdf 
 

Page 67

https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124112.pdf


4 
 

Outbreak Control Plan Part 2 – Operational Response 
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124238.pdf 

 

The initial response by Allerdale Borough Council  
 

The meetings in response to track and trace referred to above began in May. The requirement 

to be involved in additional meetings has been over and above environmental health officers’ 

regular responsibilities, which were already being impacted with regulation changes 

regarding food and occupational health.    

 

Allerdale staff were involved in following up individuals identified through track and trace 

with direct contact (distanced as appropriate) and providing advice to food businesses, other 

businesses, following up incidences for example of homelessness issues as well as dealing 

with complaints or reports from the public and carrying out enforcement where required. 

 

The Task and Finish Group appreciated the overview of the local response and was both 

satisfied with work being done and impressed with commitment and dedication of the staff 

involved working beyond their regular roles and hours. 

 

The Group noted that the success of our work in controlling the outbreak was entirely 

dependent on the efficacy of the national testing system in identifying infected persons and 

speedily communicating their details to our tracing teams. There were grave concerns, across 

the country, as to whether the testing system is working effectively: this was something the 

Task Group agreed to continue to keep in view. 

 

Second phase 

 

At the conclusion of its initial meeting the group became aware of the effect of the pandemic 

locally on children and families, which had been the subject of a recent webinar hosted by 

West Cumbria Child Poverty Forum. This generated these two meetings focusing on this topic. 

The first meeting looked at the issues identified through the webinar and the work of local 

organisations delivering community based services. The second meeting arose from the 

group’s concern to understand more about solutions being delivered both currently and 

potentially in the future. Over two meetings the group had presentations from and 

discussions with the Research Fellow in Social Inclusion and Community Development at 

UCLan, and the Council’s Chief Executive, the Policy Manager (Health) and the manager of the 

Local Focus Hub. 
 

The effect on children and families 

 

In May 2020 West Cumbria Child Poverty Forum had published a rapid response paper 

highlighting the issues affecting families during lockdown. The key findings centred around 

three themes: wellbeing, education and hardship.   

Page 68

https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124238.pdf


5 
 

 

In November 2020 the Forum then held a webinar attended by over 70 people centred on 

building a therapeutic community around children experiencing poverty:  

 

"In order to realise their potential as individuals and active citizens, children 

require an environment that fosters personal growth. They need to form 

relationships with others in an atmosphere of trust and security, they need to be 

valued, accepted and supported by those around them and they need to take real 

responsibility for themselves, others and their environment" (Oxford Health 

Complex Needs Service, 2018). 

 

Outcomes and recommendations from the webinar, being informed by national and regional 

evidence, are: 

 highlighted by this pandemic, food security and digital inclusion should be recognised 

fundamental human rights and all children should have access to these;  

 schools are significant anchor institutions in communities and should be recognised 

accordingly; 

 together we (agencies) must champion the benefits of collaboration and data sharing; 

 we must approach working with people from the basis of relationships not 

transactions – “let’s work together”, not “I’ll do this to you”; 

 we must trust in local expertise and the abilities of local community groups by sharing 

power;  

 we must listen to, and respond to, the voice of the child; and 

 finally but perhaps firstly we must ensure our approach is positive and inclusive, 

starting with considering the language we use and avoid defining or categorising 

people and areas by the words we use (such as deprived). 

 

The first session concluded with an exploration of what the Council could consider towards 

these recommendations, following the suggestion that these could be to: 

 

 fulfil statutory and discretionary obligations;  

 adopt a relational way of working (doing with not doing to); 

 reframe approaches to families experiencing poverty (language and attitudes); and  

 involve children and young people when possible. 

 

This progressed the discussion towards acquiring further knowledge about current work in 

the area and the potential to expand this approach to other communities across the borough. 

Innovation in responsiveness and developing solutions 

 

The second meeting focused on recent work in the Moorclose area seeking to understand 

community wants and needs of residents of all ages, and then on the initial work to begin to 

meet some of those with practical projects. 

Page 69



6 
 

 

Also in this meeting the group heard about the work of the Allerdale Local Focus Hub in 

addressing the problems faced by some young people caught up in the justice system as a 

result of numerous incidents and circumstances experienced in their lives to date. A 

partnership of 21 agencies including the emergency services, public sector, third sector and 

housing associations, the purpose is to promote inter agency working and push forward a 

partnership approach to problem solving, and improve the way we deliver services in local 

communities through a shared understanding of the ‘whole problem’, so that where gaps in 

services exist these can be addressed by the most relevant partner. 

 

Finally the group heard about other developments locally, focusing on the work of the 

Children and Families Partnership to bring about the changes being sought and implemented 

through its approach. 

 

The research at Moorclose involved both adults and young people carrying out ‘connected 

communities’ research, supervised by UCLan, which identified all the strengths of the area 

alongside specific issues for particular groups of people. Just before the pandemic took hold, 

the results of the research were shared with the community and the efforts of the researchers 

were celebrated. While such celebration might be easily viewed as ‘just a bit of fun’, it 

becomes a hugely important aspect of concluding a project when involving and working 

alongside people in their communities. Following on from the research, a group formed to 

develop initiatives and the first activity with local people has managed to get started, even 

though the lockdown has meant different approaches needed to be adopted. Link to the 

presentation:  Stronger Together Moorclose for ABC TFG.pptx 

 

This chart shows the percentage of children in Allerdale living in poverty 2019 (End Child 

Poverty, 2019) 

Ward* Before housing costs After housing costs 

Allerdale area 19% 28% 

Ewanrigg  29.7% 37.3% 

St Michael’s  25.6% 34.1% 

Wharrels 20.9% 32.6% 

Moss Bay  29.1% 37.0% 

Aspatria  20.9% 32.6% 

Flimby 29.7% 37.3% 

Solway 20.9% 32.6% 

Ellenborough 22.3% 30.5% 

Holme 20.9% 32.6% 

Moorclose  21.3% 32.2% 
*All these ward names refer to pre-2019 boundary changes. As a result the Wharrels ward no longer exists and 

no comparisons can be made with any post-2019 ward areas.    

 

Page 70

https://msuclanac-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/swilson21_uclan_ac_uk/Ebx-qLKd59lNlDupuuPDDxoBTKZqfiqX5hXtTzqWrD0Teg


7 
 

The principle behind the UCLan supported Connected Communities approach is that in 

everyday practice services are designed to integrate the value of social and community assets 

and networks in achieving wellbeing and inclusion outcomes. 

 

The approach has a broad range of intended outcomes, for example: 

 

Individual outcomes:    Build capacities and resilience which can potentially offer various 

educational, employment or personal development opportunities. 

 

Community outcomes:    Enhanced community assets and address community needs, 

promoting self-reliance, pro-social behaviour and independence, 

measured though the Community Capital Framework (wellbeing, 

capacity, citizenship, social value) – part of the Connected 

Communities approach.  

 

Social outcomes:   Well-connected residents, both within their own neighbourhoods 

and local services, measured through self-reported measures and 

social network analysis. Reframed police-community perceptions, 

measured through increased police reporting, focus groups and 

interviews with the police and community, and case studies of 

collaborative working.  

 

The group was interested in developing this approach across the borough and discussed how 

this might be possible, both by working with UCLan and involving other partners as or when 

appropriate. While recognising that there were clear reasons for the initial focus to be on the 

Workington area, as the figures quoted above indicate, other areas of the borough also 

require a focused and concerted effort to address the local conditions. 

 

The significance of the highlighted adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) the group heard 

about, and the manifestation of these causing issues for the partners working together as the 

Local Focus Hub, underlined the need for a different approach, echoing earlier the work in 

Moorclose and the results of the webinar. 

 

Based on experiences of prior local short term project based work, the group expressed 

concerns for exit strategies to be better planned, and ensure the continuity of funding for 

required services. The group also recognised the potential for the Council to promote and 

gain the maximum public value through its contracts and commissioning. 

 

The group then heard about the four priorities of the recently formed Children and Families 

Partnership, chaired by the Council’s Chief Executive, which cover: 

 early help and early intervention (recognising the importance of the first 1000 days of 

a child’s life); 

 healthy weight and physical activity; 

Page 71



8 
 

 youth unemployment and skills; and 

 parenting support (for young parents in particular, including pre-conception). 

 

The approach involves identifying both current provision and any gaps in that provision and 

making clear an expectation that it is incumbent on organisations to work to reduce local 

barriers,  to create easy access to services, and to promote data sharing in getting beyond the 

experience of people being passed around from service to service.  

Recognising the scale of the task in West Cumbria is important, however because this may 

involve less than 200 families in total, it ought to be possible for the Partnership’s approach 

to make a significant difference.  

Part of the solution, again building on and complementing the work of everyone involved in 

all of the work described to the group and here above, is the availability of a ‘trusted adult’ 

for young people needing support.  

These trusted adults may be found in any of the organisations engaged in the partnership 

approaches described, but the most important aspect of building this trust is that the work is 

done with people not to people. This might encourage the greatest difference when it is in 

conjunction with staff working for all the partner agencies having the support and willingness 

to be able to ‘do things differently’ at their own initiative.  

 

Roll out across the borough 

 

Members were keen to understand what would enable the Council to potentially implement 

a ‘connected communities’ or similar approach in other areas of the borough, particularly to 

support those areas regularly highlighted in significant data sets such as the indices of child 

poverty. 

 

The group was concerned that while the pandemic had meant many organisational barriers 

were quickly addressed to enable response work to be initiated, and that the experience was 

similar in some ways to community responses to the flooding events which the area has 

previously experienced, once the situation begins to normalise the benefits are potentially 

going to be lost as services return to their regular work. The questions around what will help 

to embed the positive changes and increase community resilience remain unanswered for 

now, however recognising there is a need for all partners to explore this further is a major 

first step. 

 

The delivery of services beyond the pandemic 

 

Having considered aspects of the effects of the pandemic on the community, the group 

decided to focus the third set of sessions on any resulting effects on the delivery of services 

and the staff team delivering those services. Over two meetings the group had presentations 

from and discussions with the Head of Transformation and the Chief Executive. 

Page 72



9 
 

 

The proposed future operating model was being based on research and surveys of staff 

attitudes as well as taking account of changes in the external world. 

 

The intended model is to provide options for services to be accessed online, using a principle 

of being able to speak to someone when needed and using technology when not, for example 

paying a bill. Contact with officers would be available as necessary though the preferred form 

of contact for many interactions would be through other methods, mainly online. 

 

The proposed future working model for staff is a hybrid of working from home and time in 

the office, though as a result of the pandemic most staff have been working from home. Some 

emergency response services have had staff working from the offices. 

 

The Group recommended that care be taken to ensure that this would not lead to a scattered 

provision and were concerned to ensure staff would gain some grounding in how the 

organisation works, especially newer staff. 

 

Members also recommended  that councillors are assisted to understand these changes and 

new staff arrangements or responsibilities to help them with any queries. 

 

Members further recommended that due consideration be given to the legitimate 

expectations of citizens to have access to the Council and its services in ways appropriate to 

their circumstances, so far as possible, and that any transformation of service provision 

should consider “purpose” as the starting point, with “purpose” defined by outcomes for 

citizens, measured in their terms. 

 

Members recalled that humans are social animals and value face to face contact in public 

offices and elsewhere, and the pandemic has cut many off from social contact: a pandemic 

response which reinforces isolation rather than promoting human contact is unlikely to meet 

the expectations of all citizens. 

 

Innovation in responsiveness and developing solutions 

 

The second meeting focused on discussion with the Chief Executive to understand the 

proposals for changes to the operating model and consequently to the staffing structure to 

deliver these proposals.  

 

A key feature of the new model is dealing with as much work as possible at the frontline, 

enabling front line staff to resolve issues at first contact wherever possible without necessarily 

referring to the “back office”. It is recognised that this may involve significant changes in skills 

and knowledge for staff at the “front office”, with consequences for their training and 

development. It is also recognised that not everyone will want to or be able to work in this 

Page 73



10 
 

way, and that staff have different strengths and are best used in ways which enable them to 

develop those strengths. 

 

Capital programmes are at the heart of the Whitehall approach to pandemic recovery, and 

the new model will need to recognise this and deploy people with the appropriate strengths, 

skills and knowledge to work in that context. 

 

Members recalled that the original purpose for which District Councils were called into being 

was Public Health, and most District Council functions have their origins in measures to 

protect and improve health. The pandemic has been a salutary reminder to us (if not yet to 

Whitehall) of the centrality of local public health to the well-being of the country, and any 

pandemic recovery measures need to include innovation in how we better approach securing 

the health and well-being of our citizens.  

 

Conclusion 

 

The Task and Finish Group commends this report and its recommendations to the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee and Executive.  

Page 74



11 
 

Recommendations 

 

The Task and Finish Group makes the following recommendations:  

 

1. This authority and its successor authority should continue to recognise the importance 

of the environmental health officers’ role in public health, infection control and 

responses to sudden, extreme public health concerns as highlighted by the pandemic. 

2. The Council should consider the principles and approaches outlined in this report to 

be embedded in its Resilient Communities Strategy and approach, incorporating a 

model of community development which focuses on working with people and 

communities and includes councillors as collective community leaders in their areas.   

3. The Council should ensure communities are able to take advantage of opportunities 

created by new funding programmes, for example Wigton in the Borderlands 

initiative. 

4. The Council should be at the forefront of new approaches by creating opportunities  

a –  for staff to develop their skills in relational work with communities 

b –  for communities to be supported to adopt the approaches outlined in this report, 

including undertaking research then developing projects based on the results.  

5. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee should explore the potential for public value to 

be achieved through the Council’s contracts, commissioning and other funding. 

6. The Council should collect appropriate data and/or conduct research to ensure service 

levels from the perspective of the citizen are the same or better since the 

implementation of any changes. 

7. The Council must ensure the staff team is supported to understand, implement and 

deliver through any changes to service delivery models and practices. 

8. Councillors must be supported to effectively support residents as a result of any 

service or staffing changes. 

  

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 2 September 2021 

 

Work programme update
 

Report from Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and 
Information) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on any issues and developments 
that may affect the work programme and allow consideration of those.  

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That Members: 

 Note the content of the report 

 Note the work programme presented at Appendix 1 and agree any amendments 
to that 

 Agree the Task and Finish group draft scopes at Appendices 2-4 or any 
amendments to those 

 Agree the timetabling and sequencing of the Task and Finish Groups. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

3.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed initial items for their work programme for 
the 2021/22 municipal year at their meeting on 18 June 2021.   

3.2 The Work Programme is not set in stone and can be adapted through the year to 
allow the Committee to add any additional items or remove or adapt items as 
circumstances change.  The Committee reviews its Work Programme at each 
committee meeting to ensure that it remains up to date.   

4.0  Content 

4.1 The Work Programme continues to be kept under review and updated following all 
Committee meetings when changes are suggested. The current Work Programme 
is presented as Appendix 1 which Members are asked to note. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 13



 

 

4.2 At their meeting on 18 June 2021 the Committee agreed that a task and finish 
group approach would be appropriate for the following topics: 

 Community leadership and engagement 

 Culture and leisure provision 

 Young people and corporate parenting 
 
4.3 The Committee considered draft scopes for the above TFGs at their Committee 

meeting on 16 July 2021, and had agreed that these would be undertaken in the 
following order over the year: 
1. Culture and leisure provision 
2. Community leadership and engagement 
3. Young people and corporate parenting 

 
4.4 At their meeting on 16 July 2021 the Committee discussed the fact that the 

impending announcement regarding local government reorganisation in Cumbria 
may have an impact on each of these reviews and that this would have to be taken 
into account once the announcement had been made. 

 
4.5 The recent local government reorganisation announcement means that Allerdale 

Borough Council is proposed to be replaced by a new unitary local authority in 2023 
covering the footprint of Allerdale, Copeland and Carlisle district councils.   

 
4.6 It is important to consider this new context in relation to the proposed reviews both 

in terms of transition to the new authority and how the new unitary council might 
operate in the future.  In light of this the draft scopes for the TFGs have been 
revised to take account of the unitary announcement (attached as Appendices 2-4) 
which members are asked to agree. 

 
4.7 Members are also asked to consider the timetabling of these TFGs in light of the 

LGR announcement and agree any changes to the sequencing of these reviews. 
  

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

5.1 This report relates to the Overview and Scrutiny work programme which details the 
work of the Committee over the year. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee role is central to contributing improvements 
assisting the delivery of the Council Strategy. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 None directly associated with this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 None directly associated with this report. 

Page 78



 

 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 Not applicable to this report. 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recognises the important contribution it 
makes to the Council’s overall satisfaction. 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 None directly associated with this report. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

None directly associated with this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

None directly associated with this report. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

None directly associated with this report. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

None. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 OSC Work Programme 2021/22 

2 OSC Scoping document - Community leadership and 
engagement TFG_2021 

3 OSC Scoping document - Culture and leisure provision 
TFG_2021 

4 OSC Scoping document - Youth provision TFG_2021 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

None  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Alex FitzGerald 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719  

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Work Programme 2021-2022    

Last updated: 20/08/2021 

 

Date   Agenda items  Further Information 

Friday 8 
October 

Corporate Charity trusteeship   To agree actions if not being considered by the 
Constitution Group 

Policy Framework  What should be taken forward into new local 
authority structures from our strategy and 
policy documents? 

Friday 19 
November 

Q2 Performance and financial 
management reports 
 

The Committee will consider reports relating to 
financial and overall performance for the July-
September period, identifying any aspects 
requiring further detailed consideration. 

Report from Community Leadership Task 
and Finish Group 

To agree the report and any recommendations 
to submit to Executive. 

Set up annual budget scrutiny process  

Friday 17 
December 
 

Monitoring for Best Value and VFM of the 
various town regeneration programmes 
in Workington and Maryport 

These major programmes are central to the 
Interim Delivery Plan. 

Report from Young People and Corporate 
Parenting Task and Finish Group 

To agree the report and any recommendations 
to submit to Executive. 

Friday 4 
February 
2022 
 

Public Value: How does this principle and 
concepts of Best Value and Social Value 
underpin our work - or should underpin 
our successors work? 

 

Report from Culture Arts and Leisure Task 
and Finish Group 

To agree the report and any recommendations 
to submit to Executive. 

Q3 Performance and financial 
management reports 
 
 

The Committee will consider reports relating to 
financial and overall performance for the 
October-December period, identifying any 
aspects requiring further detailed 
consideration. 

Friday 18 
March 

Outcome of budget scrutiny process To agree the report and any recommendations 
to submit to Executive. 

Friday 15 
April 
 

Reports from representatives to other 
scrutiny bodies.  
There are a number of other scrutiny 
bodies which the Council is represented 
on. 

Councillor representatives asked to provide 
updates on their work for: 
Cumbria LEP Scrutiny Board 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Joint 
Committee 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
Sellafield sites stakeholder group 

Annual work programme 2022-2023 Consideration of items for the work programme 
during the next municipal year. 

 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

Overview and Scrutiny Scoping Document 
 
 

Title of review: Community leadership and engagement 

Date scope agreed by Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  

Initial scope agreed by OSC on 16 July 2021. 

This amended version to be considered by OSC on 2 
September 2021. 

Members: All non-Executive members of the Council have been   
offered the opportunity to participate in the Task and 
Finish Group. 

Members confirmed to date: 

Councillor Alan Daniels 

Councillor Hilary Harrington 

Councillor Michael Heaslip 

Chair: To be determined (OSC member) 

Reasons for and purpose of 
review: 

(key issues and/or reason for 
doing the review) 

A local authority’s role in community leadership is multi-
faceted and how a council develops and carries out its 
role in community engagement is often central.  This can 
focus on very different aspects ranging from how 
communities are represented when developing ideas or 
drawing up bids for funding for example, or in terms of 
councillors being able to advocate for services and 
resources for their areas. 

The recent local government reorganisation 
announcement means that Allerdale Borough Council 
will be replaced by a new unitary local authority in 2023 
covering the footprint of Allerdale, Copeland and Carlisle 
councils.  It will be important to consider the 
locality/community context both in terms of transition to 
the new authority and how it plans to operate in the 
future. 

Aims and objectives of the 
review: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The review is intended to explore different aspects of 
community leadership including: 

 The role of councillors as community leaders.  
- how should councillors engage with their areas, 

what support do they need?  
- how do or should councillors get involved in 

community organising? 

 The role of officers in area/community engagement 
and engagement with councillors. 

 Identification of best practice and approaches for 
engaging with localities and communities with 

Page 83



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

 regards to decision-making and design and delivery 
of services at a locality level 

 Whether there are existing distinctive plans for our 
locality areas, how they are developed and funded 
(economic, social, environmental, etc). 

 
The intention is that the review will identify 
recommendations that can either be implemented by 
Allerdale Borough Council in the short term or carried 
forward as principles for the new unitary authority to 
consider. 

Links to Council Strategy: The review is about community leadership, engagement 
and associated locality working approaches which 
relates to the delivery of all six priority themes set out in 
the Council Strategy.  In particular the review relates to 
the Resilient Communities theme and the Council’s 
ambitions to improve engagement with communities and 
town and parish councils.   

The expectation is that this ambition will still be relevant 
to the newly created unitary authority for the west of 
Cumbria.   

Potential barriers/risks/issues:  

 

 

The unitary announcement means that that Allerdale 
Borough Council will be replaced by a new unitary local 
authority in 2023 covering the footprint of Allerdale, 
Copeland and Carlisle councils.  This means that there 
will be limited opportunity for Allerdale BC to implement 
any recommendations from this review, but as stated 
above the review recommendations would stand as a 
reference for the new unitary authority. 

Timescales for review: 

(including indicative milestones) 

Committee meeting: 

Executive/Council meeting: 

 

To be confirmed following discussion at OSC on 2 
September 2021. 

Methodology/approach: 

(what types of enquiry will be 
used to gather evidence and why) 

 

 

 

At their meeting on 16 July 2021 OSC members were 
supportive of the establishment of a task and finish 
group to consider this review topic. 

The proposed approach is that the TFG use the 
following methods to gather evidence: 

 Desk-top analysis of locality models and previous 
work on community leadership/locality working 
locally;  

 Collecting evidence from other relevant local 
authorities across the UK, particularly those that 
have undergone change in recent years; 

 Input from local members, local communities, 
town and parish councils, and other stakeholders 

Page 84



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

– and specifically those councils that currently 
operate across the areas of Allerdale, Copeland 
and Carlisle. 

 

Possible 
witnesses/participants:  

(for written and oral evidence) 

 

- subject to review as evidence 
becomes available 

 

Local elected members (Allerdale BC)  

Officers, including policy and democratic services 

Members and Officers of other local authorities 
(including specifically Carlisle, Copeland and Cumbria)  

Local communities 

Town and Parish Councils and Cumbria Association of 
Local Councils 

Community Groups 

Possible sources of 
documentary information: 

 

 

 

 

 

 Report of the Cumbria County Council Task and 
Finish Group ‘Future of Local Government in 
Cumbria – locality models and structures’ (2020) 

 Previous locality working proposals drawn up by 
Allerdale Borough Council 

 Reports and materials from other local authorities 
and organisations such as the Local Government 
Association 

Potential site visits: 

 

To be determined by the TFG. 

Officer support: 

(including roles) 

Scrutiny support for TFG activity will be provided by the 
Strategy, Policy and Performance team 

Resource requirements: 

(Budget) 

 

No additional budget resource identified – any expenses 
can be met from existing budgets. 

Publicity requirements (if 
applicable): 

Not at the scoping stage.  

 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

Overview and Scrutiny Scoping Document 
 
 

Title of review: Culture and leisure provision 

Date scope agreed by Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  

Initial scope agreed by OSC on 16 July 2021. 

This amended version to be considered by OSC on 2 
September 2021. 

Members: All non-Executive members of the Council have been   
offered the opportunity to participate in the Task and 
Finish Group. 

Members confirmed to date:  

Councillor Janet Farebrother 

Councillor Ron Munby 

Councillor Andrew Semple 

Chair: To be determined (OSC member) 

Reasons for and purpose of 
review: 

(key issues and/or reason for 
doing the review) 

Allerdale Borough Council’s contract with its provider to 
run leisure centres is coming to the final years of the 
current agreement.  Leisure and sports provision has 
had some high profile discussion and publicity relatively 
recently and the Council’s role in advocating for and 
enabling arts and cultural activities has changed in 
recent years. 

Work has started to take a fundamental look at leisure 
provision and whether the existing model of leisure 
centres is fit for purpose given what appear to be 
changing habits in physical activity.  

Work is also in the initial stages for development of a 
Cultural Strategy for West Cumbria (Allerdale and 
Copeland footprint). 

OSC have taken the view that leisure and culture 
provision is extremely important to our communities and 
it is important to track these pieces of work and other 
leisure and culture related activity.    

The recent local government reorganisation 
announcement means that Allerdale Borough Council 
will be replaced by a new unitary local authority in 2023 
covering the footprint of Allerdale, Copeland and Carlisle 
councils.  It will be important to consider this context in 
relation to this review both in terms of transition to the 
new authority and how it plans to operate in the future. 

Page 87



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

Aims and objectives of the 
review: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The review is intended to follow different aspects of 
leisure and culture provision including: 

 To consider the review of leisure services provision 
and how this work will transfer to the new unitary 
authority  

 To monitor engagement in and the effectiveness of 
the sports village proposals in Workington (including 
how this work will transfer to the new unitary 
authority) 

 To consider the development of the cultural strategy 
for West Cumbria in terms of content, engagement 
of stakeholders and relevance to the new unitary 
authority 

 To consider how culture and leisure provision might 
be supported or delivered in future  

 
The intention is that the review will identify 
recommendations that can either be implemented by 
Allerdale Borough Council in the short term or carried 
forward as principles for the new unitary authority to 
consider. 

Links to Council Strategy: The review is about cultural and leisure provision which 
relates particularly to the following priority themes set 
out in the Council Strategy.   

 Thriving towns and villages 

 Resilient Communities 

The expectation is that these ambitions will broadly still 
be relevant to the newly created unitary authority for the 
west of Cumbria.   

Potential barriers/risks/issues:  

 

 

The unitary announcement means that that Allerdale 
Borough Council will be replaced by a new unitary local 
authority in 2023 covering the footprint of Allerdale, 
Copeland and Carlisle councils.  This means that there 
will be limited opportunity for Allerdale BC to implement 
any recommendations from this review, but as stated 
above the review recommendations would stand as a 
reference for the new unitary authority. 

Timescales for review: 

(including indicative milestones) 

Committee meeting: 

Executive/Council meeting: 

 

To be confirmed following discussion at OSC on 2 
September 2021. 

Methodology/approach: 

(what types of enquiry will be 
used to gather evidence and why) 

 

At their meeting on 16 July 2021 OSC members were 
supportive of the establishment of a task and finish 
group to consider this review topic. 

The proposed approach is that the TFG use the 
following methods to gather evidence: 

Page 88



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

 

 

 Information and progress reports on proposals and 
projects relating to leisure and cultural provision 
across the Allerdale/west Cumbria area;  

 Input from local members, local communities, town 
and parish councils, and other stakeholders – and 
specifically those councils that currently operate 
across the areas of Allerdale, Copeland and Carlisle. 

 

Possible 
witnesses/participants:  

(for written and oral evidence) 

 

- subject to review as evidence 
becomes available 

 

Local elected members (Allerdale BC)  

Officers, including Sports and Leisure Manager 

Members and Officers of other local authorities 
(including specifically Carlisle, Copeland and Cumbria)  

Town and Parish Councils  

Culture and leisure organisations and community groups 

Possible sources of 
documentary information: 

 

 

 

 

 

 Project outlines and plans for review of leisure 
provision 

 Existing leisure strategy documents 

 Proposal for a cultural strategy for west Cumbria 

 Cultural plans as part of the Maryport Regeneration 
Programme 

 Reports and materials from other local authorities 
and organisations such as the Local Government 
Association 

Potential site visits: 

 

To be determined by the TFG. 

Officer support: 

(including roles) 

Scrutiny support for TFG activity will be provided by the 
Strategy, Policy and Performance team 

Resource requirements: 

(Budget) 

 

No additional budget resource identified – any expenses 
can be met from existing budgets. 

Publicity requirements (if 
applicable): 

Not at the scoping stage.  

 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

Overview and Scrutiny Scoping Document 
 
 

Title of review: Young people and corporate parenting  

Date scope agreed by Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  

Initial scope agreed by OSC on 16 July 2021. 

This amended version to be considered by OSC on 2 
September 2021. 

Members: All non-Executive members of the Council have been   
offered the opportunity to participate in the Task and 
Finish Group. 

Members confirmed to date:  

Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 

Councillor Elaine Lynch 

Chair: To be determined (OSC member) 

Reasons for and purpose of 
review: 

(key issues and/or reason for 
doing the review) 

The effects of the pandemic on young people in terms of 
education, health (including mental health), social 
relationships, life prospects and opportunities are still 
emerging and its full effect may not be known for some 
time. 

Whilst Allerdale Borough Council is not directly involved 
in youth provision, some of our services and those we 
support are working with young people and the Council 
has a role as corporate parent especially for young 
people looked after or care leavers.  The national 
guidance is clear and recognises that many agencies 
are corporate parents in the broader sense of the term 
and sets out a set of corporate parenting principles that 
we should be mindful of. 

The recent local government reorganisation 
announcement means that Allerdale Borough Council 
will be replaced by a new unitary local authority in 2023 
covering the footprint of Allerdale, Copeland and Carlisle 
councils.  It will be important to consider this context in 
relation to this review both in terms of transition to the 
new authority and how it plans to operate in the future. 

Page 91



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

Aims and objectives of the 
review: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The review is intended to focus on the following: 

 To consider the role of Allerdale Borough Council 
and how it provides services and support for young 
people including housing provision, leisure needs 
and opportunities; 

 To consider what more the Council can do to 
support those leaving care and Children looked After 
to compliment Cumbria County Council’s services to 
those children; 

 To consider how services and support for young 
people might be focused or delivered in future.  

 
The intention is that the review will identify 
recommendations that can either be implemented by 
Allerdale Borough Council in the short term or carried 
forward as principles for the new unitary authority to 
consider. 

Links to Council Strategy: The review is about youth provision which relates 
particularly to the following priority themes set out in the 
Council Strategy.   

 Resilient Communities 

The expectation is that these ambitions will broadly still 
be relevant to the newly created unitary authority for the 
west of Cumbria.   

Potential barriers/risks/issues:  

 

 

The unitary announcement means that that Allerdale 
Borough Council will be replaced by a new unitary local 
authority in 2023 covering the footprint of Allerdale, 
Copeland and Carlisle councils.  This means that there 
will be limited opportunity for Allerdale BC to implement 
any recommendations from this review, but as stated 
above the review recommendations would stand as a 
reference for the new unitary authority. 

Timescales for review: 

(including indicative milestones) 

Committee meeting: 

Executive/Council meeting: 

 

To be confirmed following discussion at OSC on 2 
September 2021. 

Methodology/approach: 

(what types of enquiry will be 
used to gather evidence and why) 

 

 

 

At their meeting on 16 July 2021 OSC members were 
supportive of the establishment of a task and finish 
group to consider this review topic. 

The proposed approach is that the TFG use the 
following methods to gather evidence: 

 Information and progress reports on activity to 
support young people and in particular children 
Looked After and care leavers by Allerdale Borough 
Council;  

Page 92



 

Allerdale Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny scoping document 

 Information on activity to support young people and 
in particular children Looked After and care leavers 
by other local councils and best practice other 
councils;  

 Input from local members, Cumbria County Council 
and other stakeholders – and specifically those 
councils that currently operate across the areas of 
Allerdale, Copeland and Carlisle. 

 

Possible 
witnesses/participants:  

(for written and oral evidence) 

 

- subject to review as evidence 
becomes available 

 

Local elected members (Allerdale BC)  

Officers, including those on the internal Safeguarding 
Working Group  

Members and Officers of other local authorities 
(including specifically Carlisle, Copeland and Cumbria)  

Youth organisations and community groups 

Possible sources of 
documentary information: 

 

 

 

 

 

 Legislation and guidance on corporate parenting 

 Allerdale Borough Council documentation relating to 
provision for young people and corporate parenting 

 Reports and materials from other local authorities 
and organisations such as the Local Government 
Association, for example report of Barrow Borough 
Council Corporate Parenting Review. 

Potential site visits: 

 

To be determined by the TFG. 

Officer support: 

(including roles) 

Scrutiny support for TFG activity will be provided by the 
Strategy, Policy and Performance team 

Resource requirements: 

(Budget) 

 

No additional budget resource identified – any expenses 
can be met from existing budgets. 

Publicity requirements (if 
applicable): 

Not at the scoping stage.  

 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Capital Outturn 2020/2021
	Appendices A-F for Capital Outturn 2020/21, 21/07/2021 Executive

	7 Revenue Outturn 2020/2021
	Appendix A_2020-21 Outturn by Portfolio, 21/07/2021 Executive
	Appendix B_2020-21 Earmarked Reserves, 21/07/2021 Executive
	Appendix C_2020-21 Contribution to Reserves, 21/07/2021 Executive

	9 Referral from Council, 27 July 2021 - to determine how the Committee will respond
	10 The Final Report of the Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group
	13 Work Programme and Task and Finish Groups 2021/22
	OSC Work Programme 2021-2022 brief version
	OSC Scoping Document_Community leadership and engagement TFG_2021
	OSC Scoping Document_Culture and leisure provision TFG_2021
	OSC Scoping Document_Young people and corporate parenting TFG_2021


